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The
President’s
Letter
Dear friends
From our humble beginnings in 1969 as the Bukit Ho Swee Community
Service Project also known as Nazareth Centre to its registration as a society
named the Bukit Ho Swee Social Service Centre in 1984 and a name change
to Beyond Social Services in 2001, we have endeavored to serve children
and youths from socially disadvantaged backgrounds in Singapore.  While
our cause has been the same, our approaches varied.

Incubating partner agencies

The common saying
“It takes a village to
raise a child” became
extremely significant
for us as we took on
the role “to nurture
the village that raises
the child.”

During the period 2004 to 2009, we were working extensively in schools,
neighbourhoods and institutions so as to reach young people with multiple
challenges.  We initiated a range of programmes with the view of hiving
them off into independent entities once they had the capacity and capability
to give the issues they were addressing an undivided focus.  
Abandoned babies, high recidivism rates of young offenders, family
disintegration and dysfunction were some of the issues we addressed.  
However, building capacity and capability for the most difficult issues was
challenging and together with other constraints in the operating terrain, we
could not realize our intention of incubating our programmes into standalone
entities as quickly as we wanted. Nonetheless, we are grateful that with the
incorporation of the Bukit Ho Swee Family Service Centre Ltd and the
Babes Pregnancy Crisis Support Ltd this year, we have succeeded in
giving the issues of vulnerable families and teen pregnancy an undivided
standalone focus.

Inviting and involving community
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Since 2001, we set out to achieve the vision that by 2025, every child
and youth in Singapore, despite a disadvantaged background has the
opportunity to refuse a lifestyle of delinquency and welfare dependency.
After the intensive expansion of social services from 2004 to 2009, we
realized that for such a vision to be achieved, an inclusive community
was the key.   It is the community and not social services that includes and
integrate children and youths who are on the fringes of society.  Thus, we
decided that as a social service organisation, our role was to facilitate this by
enabling the community to do so.  The common saying “It takes a village to
raise a child” became extremely significant for us as we took on the role
“to nurture the village that raises the child.”

Singapore was birthed out of generosity and
giving. This country was poor. We were jobless,
unemployed and illiterate. But there were those
who came forward to give, to change it all.

Why the village must be kept alive
In a village people look out for each other and mutual help builds
relationships and a problem-solving mindset that brings about self-reliance.
Children will see their family, friends and volunteers working together to
resolve problems and will learn that we can always do something to help
ourselves. This spirit of self-help will demonstrate to children that in llife,
it is not about how much we have in order to achieve what is needed. It
is about how well we use what we have to achieve the best out of it. We
believe that when vulnerable members of society take pride in helping
themselves, and all of us work collectively to make a good life out of
whatever we have, we will bring about a more cohesive and resilient
Singapore.
Singapore was birthed out of generosity and giving. This country was poor.
We were jobless, unemployed and illiterate. But there were those who
came forward to give, to change it all.  We are fortunate that our political
leaders gave of themselves for the good of the majority. But beyond the
formal leadership, there were the clans, the missionaries who built schools,
welfare homes, and the like. And of course, we had the wealthy, who gave
beyond what they needed to.
We have come this far because of our strong sense of community , our
collective responsibility and we need to keep this alive because not just
children but anyone who is vulnerable would be better off living among
others who look out for them.
“Nurturing the village” is aligned with the hopeful intent of the
government’s “Many Helping Hands” approach. We partner individuals,
formal and informal groups from neighborhoods, corporations, religious
groups, social and service clubs and anyone who seeks to meet needs
in the community. The many hands have made life a lot more vibrant for
the children and families we serve and more importantly formed new
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ties among people. We are heartened by this as like a carpet, society is
intricate. The more knots it has, the stronger it becomes. If there are less
knots, it becomes weaker. This approach may make help appear a little
unstructured but this is the paradox. Overly structured social services may
provide a sense of security but it weakens the social fabric of our society.
There will be less ties among people and the carpet with less knots will
tear easily.
It was been a year of new initiatives which you can read in this report
and a year of many new friendships. Nonetheless, I would like to take this
opportunity to thank old friends whose ties have made our organisation
strong. I would like to thank our Patrons Dr Sheryn Mah and Mrs Joy
Balakrishnan,who retired on 1 Mar 2013  after 8 years of dedicated
service. They have harnessed much goodwill for our cause and I wish them
blessings in abundance. I would also like to thank our Honorary Advisor
Dr S.Vasoo and my fellow Board members for their continued generosity
of service.
Finally, as we move ahead, we need to understand and value that as a
community, we must never shy away from addressing the difficulties in our
midst.  By expecting social problems to be the sole responsibility of the
government; we would be depriving ourselves, our friends and our family
lessons in self-reliance, empathy and compassion. When we all agree that
it is not about what we have but what we give, we will not just be building
a village that raises children, we will be building a village we are all proud
of; one we call our home.

Sincerely,

Stanley Tan
President
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2.

Executive Director’s
Summary
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Executive
Director’s
Summary

Every year of service presents many learning opportunities and this year
we are grateful that we have gained a deeper appreciation of the mindsets and actions needed for a stronger involvement of family, friends
and volunteers in the lives of those we are assisting. We realised that to
involve others in our work it is critical that we must know our work well. We
cannot take the position that others need to know our work before they
can contribute because that will disqualify almost everyone from rendering
their assistance. So, regardless whether we are tackling a social issue at
the individual, family, organisational or societal level, we need to be clear
about the resources or actions needed to improve the situation. Only then,
will we be able to seek them out within the community and among family,

To succeed as brokers we need to ensure that the
marginalised and the mainstream are both ready
for each other.
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friends and volunteers. When we
can describe the resources needed
and the circumstances we need to
create, we are more likely to involve
others in purposeful conversation
and cooperation.

within the community that can be
harnessed for the benefit of the
disadvantaged. It showed us that
sustainable solutions for social
problems emerge when we are able
to do so.

This is important learning that we
must remember as we engage
Singapore society to support
our work in the years ahead. It
is learning that came about from
a conscious attempt throughout
the year to engage and involve
the community in our work. In
the process, we also realised the
immense potential of resources

We continued to target young
people aged 19 years old and
below living in Central Singapore
District from households with a
per capita income of $450 or less.
The Singapore Population Census
informs us that there are about
9500 which are 5% of the
190 000 strong youth population.
We soldiered on with our ambition

to progressively connect all of them
to resources in the mainstream
and by December, we were in
touch with approximately 3500
(36.8%). When young people are
disengaged from the mainstream
they tend to get into trouble and
when they are already in trouble,
their problems spiral because they
tend to avoid the mainstream.
Hence, getting disadvantaged
young people connected to
resources in the mainstream is
providing the opportunity for them
to steer clear of trouble. The other
important aspect of our work
is cultivating a mainstream that
strives to integrate everyone into
society. By building our practice
on compassion, social justice and
community, we advocate for a social
climate where relationships matter
and where people are valuable
regardless.
In essence, we are brokers and in
different context refer to ourselves
as match-makers, family conference
co-ordinators, resource mobilisers,
relationship builders, peace-circle
keepers and so forth. Much skill,
sensitivity and clarity of thought
is needed but the probability
of success increases when the
mainstream appreciates that our
work does not lead to a problemfree world. It leads to a world
where problem solving is embraced

as an opportunity to repair the hurt in relationships, to encourage personal
growth and to help people live purposeful and meaningful lives. In short,
to succeed as brokers we need to ensure that the marginalised and the
mainstream are both ready for each other.
Our conscious attempt to engage the community began by relooking
the desired outcomes that all our programmes were collectively trying to
bring about. While it was clear to us that these 8 outcomes as a whole
create the conditions for young people to steer away from delinquency
and other poverty related problems, the exercise brought about a deeper
appreciation of their significance and the work needed. As a result, work
scope, deliverables and processes were clearly defined to ensure that staff
members were deployed in positions that optimised their strengths. Most
importantly, the work processes that emerged ensured that the staff worked
in partnership with family, friends and volunteers from the onset.
Here is the gist of the progress and challenges in seeking the desired
outcomes:

1. A long-term engagement/
relationship with all youths
until they are 25 years old.

A relationship begins with a contact and then people need a reason to
keep in touch for the longer run. Our work in this area is about contacting
young people and connecting then to programmes, resources and people
with their best interest at heart.
We worked primarily in 5 neighbourhoods with coverage of 6278
household units and we contacted 3589 (57.1%). Together with those who
lived outside these neighbourhoods we were in contact with 5628 children
and youths who came from 2108 families. This would not have been
possible without the support of volunteers who tirelessly knocked on doors.
It was resource intensive work but it was also an important opportunity
for people from diverse backgrounds to meet; and in a small way it was a
gesture of friendship and solidarity as a community.
Residents were warm and generally supportive of our endeavour to nurture
neighbourhoods that raised their children well. As such, we uncovered a
treasure trove of skills and goodwill that could be harnessed for the good of
over-stressed families and the developmental needs of children and youths.
However, doing this well and connecting young people to resources and
relationships presented an on-going challenge. Thankfully, many volunteers
appreciated the relevance of our endeavour and shared their resources
and know-how in helping us develop a constituent relationship management
system. Prudential and Avaya also joined hands to explore the possibility of
a contact centre to facilitate long-term engagement.
Increasing our capability in this area of work requires developing
organisational machinery, the routine oiling of our work processes and the
honing of our people skills. With the continued support of volunteers we are
confident of making progress in the year ahead.
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2. Neighbourhoods that
take a restorative approach
towards young offenders and
multiple problem families.

Low income neighbourhoods are often unfairly associated with youth
delinquency.  So we put in place a programme structure that enables the
residents of these neighbourhoods to take active steps in identifying and
addressing their concerns and problems. We encouraged residents to play
the role of “Good Samaritans” who spotted problems early and facilitated
the formation of groups that took on the task of creating and executing a
calendar of activities aimed at keeping youths purposefully occupied. We
are encouraged that over 420 adult residents contributed as organisers or
helpers during such activities.

3. A culture of learning and
education among children
and youths

An internal survey revealed that 63% of our children in primary school
were failing in at least 2 subjects. This also meant that many had doubts
about their ability to learn and to fit into structured learning environments.
In response, we attempted to strengthen their self-belief by linking these
children to structured learning environments where they could experience
success. Depending on the their ability and readiness, these were structured
programmes in sports or the arts, individual coaching and classroom
learning that focused on learning skills.  We also impressed on their caregivers that they had the ability to learn and visibly celebrated success in
learning through year-end graduation events. 517 primary school children
benefitted from being in a learning programme.

4. A culture of employment
among the care-givers of
our young people and other
adult residents

A job club with some 200 members provided the opportunity for people
to cooperate for mutual benefit. This contributed to a sense of community
and we believe that when people develop a sense of enterprise, they are
learning to help themselves. On average, members earned an average
of $783 which was a like a “red packet” or small gift to supplement
household expenses. We see this as a start and to build on it we aim to
help members generate an average of least $450 a month in income for
the year ahead.

5. A high level of voluntarism
and community participation
among children, youths and
their care-givers.

About 400 youths volunteered and that was 7.1% of our youth membership.
We will be using the national volunteering average of 30% as a benchmark
to reach. This is because youth development is about developing leadership
among young people and not simply keeping them occupied. We nurture
youth leadership by facilitating voluntarism and training community leaders
for the future.

6. Increased family
involvement and
competence in resolving
their difficulties

Mh^qihl^fhk^_Zfbeb^lmhma^\hg\^imh__Zfberlmk^g`ma^gbg`%p^
k^_k^la^]hnkZiikhZ\apbmama^bgmkh]n\mbhgh_phkdlahilZg]fZll
p^^d^g]k^mk^Zml'P^Zk^`eZ]maZmZlZk^lnem%p^fZgZ`^]mh^g`Z`^
*-+_Zfbeb^lbgZ\mbobmb^lmaZmZ_Ûkf^]ma^bkZ[bebmrmhl^^makhn`ama^bk
]b_Û\nemb^l'Ebd^ik^obhnlr^Zkl%ikhob]bg`_Zfbeb^lZliZ\^[^rhg]ma^
\hngl^eebg`khhfmh]^Zepbmama^bk]b_Û\nemb^l\hgmbgn^]mhikho^[^g^Û\bZe'
MablpZlZliZ\^ZpZr_khfma^bk]Zberlmkn``e^lmaZm\ehn]^]]^\blbhg&
fZdbg`%lmkZbg^]k^eZmbhglabilZg]]bl\hnkZ`^]\hglmkn\mbo^ikh[e^f
lheobg`'BmpZlZliZ\^maZm^gZ[e^]_Zfbeb^lmh\hhi^kZm^_hkma^p^ee&
[^bg`h_ma^bkf^f[^klZg]p^\ZgmknerlZrmaZm^o^kr_ZfberpZlfhlm
`kZm^_ne_hkma^hiihkmngbmrZg]lniihkm'?Zfbeb^lZk^ma^_ng]Zf^gmZe
`khni_hkma^`khpmaZg]p^ee&[^bg`h_\abe]k^gZg]p^pbee\hgmbgn^mh
phkd_hk\abe]k^g[rphkdbg`mhd^^ima^bk_Zfbeb^llmkhg`'
Hg^bgbmbZmbo^maZmk^lnem^]_khfma^a^b`am^g^]ZpZk^g^llmhphkdbg
iZkmg^klabipbma_Zfber%_kb^g]lZg]ohengm^^klpZlma^\k^Zmbhgh_ma^
<hffngbmrK^lihgl^<hg_^k^g\^'Ma^lmZ__phne]hk`Zgbl^Zf^^mbg`_hk
ohengm^^klpahphne]ebd^mhZllblmZ_Zfber_Z\bg`l^kbhnl\aZee^g`^l':_m^k
ik^l^gmbg`ma^g^\^llZkrbg_hkfZmbhg%ma^lmZ__pbeee^Zo^ma^ohengm^^klmh
\hf^nipbma\hg\k^m^ikZ\mb\ZepZrlahpma^r\Zgk^g]^klniihkm'?heehpbg`
ma^f^^mbg`%ma^lmZ__pbee\hgo^rma^ohengm^^klh__^kh_lniihkmmhma^_Zfber
Zg]pbmama^bk\hgl^gm%k^o^Zema^bkb]^gmbmrZg]ebgdma^fnimhma^ohengm^^kl
Ma^oZen^h_aZobg`ma^\hffngbmrZmeZk`^k^lihg]bg`mhma^g^^]lh_ma^
fZk`bgZebl^]hkmkhn[e^]blikh_hng][^\Znl^bmiZo^lma^pZrmhpZk]Zg
bg\enlbo^Zg]\ha^lbo^lh\b^mr'Pa^gohengm^^klk^g]^klniihkmbg\hg\k^m^
ikZ\mb\ZepZrlln\aZlZ\\hfiZgrbg`Zmbk^]fhma^kmhma^aZbk]k^ll^kZg]
[Z[rlbmmbg`a^k\abe]k^g%ma^rgnkmnk^_kb^g]labilmaZm^g\hnkZ`^k^\bikh\bmr'
Pa^gln\ak^eZmbhglabilZk^lnlmZbg^]%ma^ra^eimhk^]n\^ma^l^gl^h_
blheZmbhgZfhg`i^hie^'Inmlbfier%pa^gi^hie^bgZ\hffngbmrk^Z\ahnmmh
^Z\ahma^k%ma^rmhn\a^Z\ahma^kZi^klhgZepZrmaZmlmkn\mnk^]ZllblmZg\^
_khf`ho^kgf^gmhkZlh\bZel^kob\^hk`ZgblZmbhgblghmebd^ermh]hlh'

7. Cooperation among
helping agencies that provide
meaningful programmes for
our service-seers

P^phkd^]mhpZk]`^mmbg`ehpbg\hf^g^b`a[hnkahh]l[^mm^kk^lhnk\^]
pbmafZbglmk^Zfl^kob\^l'A^g\^%p^fZgZ`^]mh`^miZk^gmlmhZ\\^llZ
ikh`kZff^_khfma^A^ZemaIkhfhmbhg;hZk]maZma^ei^]ma^fmZedmhma^bk
\abe]k^gZ[hnml^q'Ma^^qi^kb^g\^lahp^]nlmaZm_hkln\aikh`kZff^lmh
k^fZbgZk^`neZk_^Zmnk^h_Zg^b`a[hnkahh]%hnklmZ__k^lhnk\^lZk^lmbee
g^^]^]'K^lb]^gmlZmm^g]^]ln\aikh`kZff^lZliZkmb\biZgmlZg]p^aZo^
r^mmhln\\^^]bgbglibkbg`lhf^h_ma^fmha^ei\hhk]bgZm^ma^ikh`kZff^
_hkma^[^g^Ûmh_hma^kiZk^gmlbgma^bkg^b`[hnkahh]'
Hg^lb`gbÛ\ZgmfZbglmk^ZfZ\mbobmrmaZmp^bgmkh]n\^]mhhnk
g^b`ahnkahh]lpZlLnZkZFnlrZpZkZahkma^Lbg`Zihk^<hgo^klZmbhgl
_hkma^FZeZrFnlebfihineZmbhg'Makhn`ama^\hgo^klZmbhglhnkk^lb]^gml
ikhob]^]oZenZ[e^_^^][Z\dmhma^`ho^kgf^gm'/-h_hnk\abe]k^gZg]
rhnmaf^f[^klabiZk^FZeZrlZg]p^_^emmaZmbmpZlbfihkmZgmmaZmma^
ohb\^lh_ma^bk\Zk^&`bo^klp^k^a^Zk]bgmablgZmbhgZe\hgo^klZmbhg[^mp^^g
ma^@ho^kgf^gmZg]ma^\bmbs^gkr'
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8. Increased cooperation
among civil society
that support long-term
relationships/friendships
with our service-users

There was a constant flow of individuals, organisations and corporations
asking us how they could be of assistance. It was most encouraging and at
the same time troubling when we could not be as responsive as we would
have like to. This constant flow of support contributed to the active calendar
of events in the neighbourhoods and the challenge is to translate these adhoc activities into a longer-term friendship. We were given a hint how this
could happen when a couple of organisations and corporations agreed to
“adopt” a neighbourhood for the longer run.

To sum up, our conscious attempt to involve the larger Singapore community to play an active part in our work
revealed endless possibilities for our children, youths and their families to be better integrated into society. Rallying
our community around social issues is the most promising way forward of offering some balance to Singapore,
a country with one of the highest income disparity in the world.  We learnt that to be better at what we do, our
community workers have to be curious and welcoming of all that is in our world. A Jack or Jill of all trades and a
master of friendships.

In friendship,

Gerard Ee

Executive Director

12

3.

INTRODUCING
OURSELVES
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3.1
ABOUT US
Beyond Social Services is a charity that guides children and youths from less privileged backgrounds away from
delinquency and other poverty related problems.  We hope our work has a longer-term impact and so we aspire to
keep in touch with these young people until they are 25 years old. We hope that at 25, they would have become
responsible citizens who are not troubled by the social and economic problems they had when we first met them.
To achieve this, we believe that young people need to live within an environment that has their best interest at
heart.   Hence, Beyond works at supporting neighbourhoods to be caring communities that provide guidance, care,
protection and resources that keep young people in school and out of trouble.

3.1.1
Who We Serve
Many of the young people we serve have a long family history of hardship
and the challenges they face include the inability to meet basic household
expenses, poor health, chronic addictions and conflicts with authority,
family members and friends. However, these young people are resilient
and they have dreams and aspirations. With appropriate support from the
community, many move beyond their unfortunate circumstances.

3.1.2
Our Vision & Goals
Beyond’s vision is that by 2025, every child and youth in Singapore,
despite a disadvantaged background has the opportunity to refuse a
lifestyle of delinquency and welfare dependency.
To realise this vision, we are proactively contacting and connecting disadvantaged
children and youths to resources and relationships in the mainstream. In this
way, we reduce the isolation that keeps them trapped in hardship.
Our efforts are directed toward the following goals:
• That children and youths steer clear of crime and drugs;
• That children and youths achieve educational success that enables them
to earn a living and realise a more meaningful life;
• That children and youths are prepared to become responsible adults
who manage their families or households competently.
• That parents, children and youths attain skills that enable them to
manage money prudently for their long-term financial needs;
• That parents and caregivers take an active interest in the well-being and
development of their children and youths.
14

3.1.3
Our Helping Principles
Overall

• We must not act on behalf of clients where there is a potential conflict
of interest.
• It is in the best interests of children to remain with their families
or natural support groups.  Residential care must always be a
short-term arrangement.
• Help should build on people’s strengths and not simply remedy
their weaknesses.
A helping relationship is a respectful partnership between us and the
people we engage.
• Social problems are best resolved within the community and we avoid
criminal or judicial proceedings where possible.
• The essence of family life is co-operation, not togetherness.

Child Specific

• Children are not little adults; they are to be treated as children and not
by adult standards;
• Children and their families no matter how challenging have strengths
that can be built on to help them develop into well-adjusted individuals
and nurturing environments respectively;
• Challenging behaviours from children are distress signals that their basic
needs have not been met and we need to respond appropriately instead
of only controlling their problem behaviours;
• When a child is not cooperative, it is because our system is not working
and not because we have a problem child.
• We will be respectful to children under our care even those who have
not yet learned to behave respectfully and impress on them that they in
turn have to be responsible for their behaviours.
• Each day, a child should know some joy and look forward to some joy
on the next.

3.1.4
Our Services & Facilities
Our Services are organized into 3 departments:
1.
Problem De-escalation
2.
Family Strengthening
3.
Community Integration & Development
We prefer not to go about building centres or facilities. Wherever possible
we will rent, borrow or cooperate with others to share their existing
facilities. By taking this approach we will be able to grow the work
without incurring too much set-up cost. More importantly, we do not “set
up shop” is the presence of existing community-serving organisation and
mistakenly giving the impression that we are out to compete with them.
The proliferation of social services and its facilities implies that families
and communities are unable to care for its members. Hence, “less is
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more” and by cooperating with these organisations toward shared goals;
we strengthen our collective sense of community. Generally, without the
need for ‘permanent’ offices, we can respond to community needs more
nimbly. As long as we can create a warm and welcoming environment
wherever we work, any place can be an effective work place.
Our proactive work approach takes us to schools, neighbourhoods,
community facilities and youth haunts but our staff teams are housed
at the premises below.

1.

Block 26 Jalan Klinik
#01-42/52
Singapore 160026
(registered address)
Telephone: 6375-2940
Facsimile:  6274-0633

2.

Block 120 Bukit Merah View
#01-04/06
Singapore 152120
Telephone: 6270-2443
Facsimile: 6270-4483

3.

Block 75 Whampoa Drive
#01-346 & 372
Singapore 320075
Telephone: 6354-0980
Facsimile: 6254-6405

3.1.5
Our Sources of Funding
Our mainly source of funds is from fund-raising activities. The Mainly I
Love Kids (MILK) Fund is a key partner that raises funds to support our
work.   Operating expenses are also defrayed by public donations,
government subvention from Ministry of Social and Family Development
and government grants managed by the National Council of Social Service
and the generosity of philanthropic establishments, commercial corporations
and well-wishers.
In 2012 and 2013, our biggest source of funds was grant-makers.
An analysis of our fund-raising efforts can be found on
http://bit.ly/Nzcegu
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3.1.6
How We Work
It is a community that integrates people not an organisation. Beyond as an
organisation works at facilitating an all inclusive community. We work on
the premise that service-users, volunteers, partners, donors and staff are
members of a community working together to guide disadvantaged young
people away from the poverty cycle. The task is complex and massive
and it is obvious that the resources, expertise and energy needed to meet
community needs lie beyond the staff team and within the community.
Volunteers, self-help initiatives and goodwill from the community are key in
the realisation of the organisation’s vision.

3.1.7
Total Number of persons reached in 2013
11,854 persons from 2108 families.
Breakdown
Number of children and youths served
Number of parents and care givers we have contacted*
Number of families

5628
6226
2108

*Numbers include all adults living in the same household and not all parents and care-givers
benefit directly from a service or programme.

For more information about us, check out www.beyond.org.sg
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3.2
Our Board of Management (Term 2013/14)
President

Mr Stanley Tan

Vice-President

Mr Goh Chee Kong

Honorary Treasurer

Mr Chua Kee Lock

Honorary Secretary

Mr San Shang Hou

Committee Members

Mr Andy Leck
Ms Janet Lyn
Dr Tan Poh Kiang

Founder Member Representative

Sr Molly Lim/Sr Mary Soh

3.2.1
Banker 		

DBS Bank

3.2.2
Auditor 		

Helmi Talib & Co

3.2.3
Other Advisors

Mr Andy Leck, Legal Advisor
Dr Tan Poh Kiang, Medical Advisor

3.3
Our Honorary Members

18

Honorary Advisor

Dr S. Vasoo

Honorary Member

Mr David Goh, PBM

3.4
Our Board Committees

3.4.1
Appointment & Nomination Committee
Chair
Members

Dr Tan Poh Kiang
Mr Andy Leck
Mr Chua Kee Lock

3.4.2
Audit Committee
Chair
Members

Ms Tan Eng Hwa
Ms Alice Chew
Ms Koh Ai Leng

3.4.3
Finance & Admin Committee
Chair
Members

Mr Chua Kee Lock
Ms Ang Siew Lian
Ms Bernadette Lau
Ms Janet Lyn

3.4.4
Human Resource Committee
Chair
Members

Mr Goh Chee Kong
Mr Franz Yeo
Sr Molly Lim
Mr Seow Choon Chew (fr 19 Sep)

3.4.5
Programme Committee
Chair
Members

Mr Stanley Tan
Mrs Campos Chia Chiu Leng
Dr Goh Han Meng
Dr Tan Poh Kiang
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3.4.5.1
Healthy Start Child Development Centre
Management Committee
Chair
Members

Assoc Prof Christine Lee
Ms Lim Seok Lin
Dr Sudha Mary George
Assoc Prof Sirene Lim

3.4.5.2
Beautiful People Programme
Chair
Members

Ms
Ms
Ms
Ms

Melissa Kwee
Gail Wong
Geraldine Lim
Susie Lim

3.4.6
Volunteer Committee
Chair
Members
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Mr San Shang Hou
Mr Andrew Ng Kok Beng
Mr Chalvin Seah Yi Yang
Mr Hwang Jeng-Ming
Mr Marc Lim
Mr Ng Boon Teck
Ms Tan Wei Ni
Mr Sanjaendran s/o Balakrishnan

3.5
Related Party Transactions
FRS 24 defines a related party as the trustees/office bearers and key management of the Society. It also includes
an entity or person that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common or joint control with
these persons. It also includes members of the key management personnel or close members of the family of any
individual referred to herein and others who have the ability to control, jointly control or significantly influence
by or for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, by such individual. Key
management personnel consists of
Executive Director, Deputy Executive
Director and Assistant Directors.
There is no claim by the trustees/
office bearers for services
provided to the Society, either by
reimbursement to the trustees/office
bearers or by providing
the trustees/bearers with an

allowance or by direct payment
to a third party.
The trustees/office bearers, or
people connected with them, have
not received remuneration or
other benefits, from the Society for
which they are responsible, or from
institutions connected with
the Society.

This information is provided in
compliance with Section 3.1 of the
Code of Governance for Charities
& Institutions of a Public Character
issued by The Charity Council on 26
November 2007. Below are the list
of our Patrons, Board Members and
Board Committee Members who are
also serving with the MILK Fund.

Name

Designation at the MILK Fund

1. Dr Sheryn Mah
2. Mr Stanley Tan

President

3.
4.
5.
6.

Mrs Joy Balakrishan
Ms Janet Lyn
Mr Chua Kee Lock
Mrs Campos-Chia Chiu Leng

Vice-President
Hon Secretary
Ordinary Committee Member
Member
Member
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3.6
Conflict of Interests Policy
The Society has a conflict of interest policy in place.
All trustees/office bearers, chairman of sub-committees and key
management personnel are required to read and understand the conflict of
interests policy. They are required to make full disclosure of interests. They
are required to sign the declaration form every year. When a conflict of
interest situation arises, the member or staff shall declare his interests and
abstain from participating in the discussion, decision making and voting on
the matter.
There is no transaction with a corporation in which the trustees/office
bearers and the key management staff have an interest during the financial
year 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013.

3.7
The Staff Management Team
Executive Director
Deputy Executive Director
Management Team
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Mr Gerard Ee (Appointed since 01 June 1991)
Ms T Ranganayaki
Mr Andrew Loh
Ms Christina Joy Eruthyanathan
Ms Farizah Bte Abdul Rahman till 28 Mar
Ms Gloria Dom
Ms Martha Chai
Ms Pascale Paul
Ms Lim Shaw Hui
Ms Simone Kaelen
Mr Vincent Lim
Mr Yet Tun Hoong

3.8
Additional information
3.8.1
Key Office Holders
Name

Occupation

Designation & Date of
of Appointment to Current Office  

Designation & Date
Appointmentin  to 1st Key Office

1. Mr Stanley Tan

Entrepreneur

President
2011 to current

Honorary Treasurer
2001 - 2002

2. Mr Chua Kee Lock

Venture capitalist

Honorary Treasurer
2011 to current

Honorary Treasurer
2007 - 2008

Honorary Secretary
2010 to current

Honorary Secretary
2010 to current

3. Mr San Shang Hou
Engineer
			

3.8.2 Reserves policy
Our reserves position:
In S$

Year 2013

Year 2012

% Increase/ (Decrease)

Unrestricted Funds(Reserves)

1,718,243

2,258,066

(24)

Restricted Funds			
- Bukit Ho Swee Family Service Centre Programme
326,421
274,853
- Babes Teen Mom Crisis Service Programme
(134,532)
(86,045)
Designated Funds:
- Beautiful People Fund
- Beyond Champions Fund
- Cirque Du Monde Fund
- Educational Assistance Fund
- Employee Welfare Fund
- Family Assistance Fund
- FSC Comcare Fund
- FSC Discretionary Fund
- School Pocket Money Fund

234,813
751
292
100,483
88,843
30,554
-

177,285
3,501
292
92,561
88,843
21,748
8,800
890
5,690

455,737
399,610
			
Total Funds1
2,367,869
2,846,484
			
Ratio of Reserves2 to Annual Operating Expenditure3
0.38
0.40
Legend:-

1 Total funds include unrestricted, restricted and designated funds.
2 Unrestricted Funds.
3 Charitable activities and other operating and administration expenses of General Fund.

23

Fund raising income usually reduces
during periods when the economy is
not doing well but it is also during these
periods that beneficiaries need help
all the more. It was decided during the
20th Annual General Meeting held on
Saturday, 18 March 2006 that we will
not keep a reserve fund that is more than
3 years of our operating budget.
The reserves are monitored and reviewed
periodically by the Board, ensuring that
the work is always supported.

3.8.3
There are no funds in deficit.
3.8.4
The principal funding sources
of Beyond Social Services are Government sources (MSF, Tote Board
and NCSS) and donations from partners, well-wishers, friends and
public.
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4.

OVERVIEW OF SERVICES
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Advocate,
Enabler &
Motivator

4.1
Our Strategy
As a result of a strategic planning exercise in 2001, we crafted a strategic
profile to guide us.  The profile is periodically reviewed and last updated in
2011 after a Programme Review.

Beyond’s Strategic Profile
We exist to steer children and youths away from delinquency and poverty
related ills. We are currently focusing our resources on the low-income
families within Central Singapore District with a view to reaching the rest of
Singapore.
We will adopt a proactive and holistic approach by being an Advocate,
Enabler and Motivator. Our programmes will protect vulnerable children
and youths and increase protective factors in the community.
We will be a leading agency as well as a voice to bring about positive
government policies that promote an all-inclusive society, an adequate
network of community partners and a low juvenile delinquency rate.
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4.2
Our Continuum of Services
Our programmes are the ‘doors’ by which our service-users come to us but
our work as a whole follows a similar continuum.  We move our service-users
beyond a crisis or problem; stabilise their situation by strengthening their
families and support networks and facilitate their integration into communities.
This way, with the support of their extended family and the community, our
service-users become resilient enough to handle their problems and move
beyond the need for professional support
Our programmes are managed within
named after their core function: 1.
2.
3.

the following departments which are
Problem De-escalation
Family Strengthening
Community Integration & Development

Each department emphasises an area of work within our continuum of service.   
This report is presented according to the work areas of Crisis & Problem
De-escalation, Family Strengthening & Community Integration.
A. PROBLEM & CRISIS DE-ESCALATION

B. FAMILY STRENGTHENING

C. COMMUNITY INTEGRATION

• Juvenile Justice in the Community

• Family Learning Centre
• Hope Scheme

•
•
•
•

Healthy Start Child Development Centre
Learning Is Fun & Exciting
Beautiful People
Youth United
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4.3
Our Roles as
Advocate, Enabler
and Motivator

4.3.1
Advocate
Advocacy is our effort to
• draw attention to the needs and challenges of those we serve;
• gain public support for initiatives that address those needs and challenges;
• highlight the unintended effects of laws, policies and practices that affect
our ability to carry out our work;
• provide feedback on the impact of national policies and programmes as
experienced by the service user;
• the initiation of programmes, practices and policies that bring about a
more restorative landscape for children, youth and families thus,
promoting an all inclusive society.

4.3.2
Enabler
Social service programmes run by professionals run the risk of discouraging
community- led efforts to care for their vulnerable members. Thus, our role
is to nurture community leadership. Sometimes to meet an urgent need, it
may be necessary for us to begin and drive a programme. However, we do
so with an exit plan where
• the community  is enabled to eventually take on the leadership or
• the needs are being met by resources or stakeholders in the mainstream.
As an enabler we are close to ground and through the voices of serviceusers, we experience the impact of policies, programmes and deepen our
understanding of social issues.  

4.3.3
Motivator
We believe that wherever possible, the non-profit sector should seek to
grow by collaboration rather than competition. Sharing and cooperation
maximises organisational resources and increases the possibility of our
beneficiaries receiving better quality services.  Thus, as motivator we will
facilitate:
• networks, alliances & friendships that promote cooperation
and collaborations;
• the sharing of expertise, knowledge and resources to enable the
    replication of programmes or to increase service-user participation;  the
building of sector capability and capacity through formal and informal
training programmes.
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4.4
A community building and
peace-making approach
To bring about neighborhoods that look out for children, the organisation
as a whole focuses on the achievement of 8 objectives. These objectives
were chosen with a view of addressing current needs and developing
community leaders for the present and the future. Every programme
contributes towards the achievement of these objectives :

1. A long-term engagement/relationship with all youths (Keeping in touch with service-users until they are 25).
2. Neighbourhoods that take a restorative approach towards young offenders and multiple problem families.
3. A culture of learning and education among children and youths
4. A culture of employment among the care-givers of our young people and other adult residents
5. A high level of voluntarism and community participation among children, youths and their care-givers.
6. Increased family involvement and competence in resolving their difficulties
7. Cooperation  among helping agencies that provide meaningful programmes for our service-seers
8. Increased cooperation among civil society that support long-term relationships/”friendships”
     with our service-users

The objectives are interlinked and span across deliverables corresponding to the individuals,
local community and larger community. This is the way we build community.

How the objectives are connected
Target Group

Member & Natural
Support Networks

Local
Community

Larger
Community

Focus

Strengthening of
members mutual support
networks with family,
friends and volunteers

Creating platforms
for associations to
flourish and act in a
restorative manner

Mobilisation of
resources to help
communities develop
from the inside out

Objectives
specific to
target group

Obj.1: LT engagement
Obj.6: Families making
decisions

Obj.2: Restorative
           Neighbourhoods
Obj.5: Local voluntarism

Obj.7: Cooperation among
          helping agencies
Obj.8: Civil Society
           Participation

Objectives
spanning target
groups

Obj.3: A culture of learning and education among children and youths
Obj.4: A culture of employment among the care-givers of our young people and        
           other adult residents
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5.

PROBLEM DE-ESCALATION
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5.
Problem De-escalation
Problem De-escalation is work guided by our helping principle that social problems are best resolved within the
community. Families and communities are enabled to address and resolve their problems especially those related to
children and youths. This approach attempts to avoid criminal or judicial proceedings, prevent institutionalisation or
out-of-home care for children and youths.
In the area of youth misbehaviours; the approach guides young people to put right what they have done wrong
with the support of their family and the community.  The work is also early intervention for issues that are likely to
escalate into chronic situations requiring long-term social services. While there may be obvious and acceptable
reasons why people require social services in their lives, we are mindful that social services must never replace
or compete with the family and the community. Hence, problem de-escalation work strengthens the presence and
involvement of family, friends and community in the lives of children and youths.

5.1
Overview

When a helping relationship is first established, there is a mutual
understanding between the help-seeker and the helper that it will be
terminated once the issues at hand have been resolved. In practice, there
are various reasons why the helper often finds it difficult to terminate the
helping relationship but the crux is that there is insignificant improvement in
the problematic situation.
At the beginning of the year as we were reviewing our work processes,
we adjusted them to be better in sync with our definition of success. We
succeed when the help-seeker is able to lead a responsible life regardless
of his or her disadvantages or broader society factors.  We believe that this
this is more likely to happen when the help-seeker has the support of family,
friends and volunteers. Hence, our work processes now indicate our resolve
to involve family, friends and volunteers in the problem-solving processes
the moment the help-seeker comes to us.  
Involving the extended family and their natural support network has been
our standard practice since we embraced family group conferencing in
2004 and we have a range of different tools and approaches to engage
the family. This year, we adapted some of these approaches to invite and
involve volunteers in the problem-solving process. The Community Response
Conference and the Restorative Neighbourhood Project were opportunities
for volunteers to help de-escalate a problem from a family-centric or
neighbourhood-centric approach respectively. We facilitated 3 Community
Response Conferences and 21 Restorative Neighbourhood Projects.
Help-seekers who come to us have usually done their personal best in trying
to resolve their problematic situation. Yet often as helpers, we continue to
expect them to overcome their difficulties on their own. While counselling,
training and other personal development interventions are valuable, it
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is also important that help-seekers have supportive people around them
whom they can count on. Thus, we now endeavour to reach a mutual
understanding with the help-seeker that our presence in their lives will
be reduced proportionately to the increased support we can garner
around them.  
We make it clear to our help-seekers that we are not here to change
them nor do we claim to have the ability to do so. However, we can
work together to organise support around them so that their situation can
improve.  In this way, we hope the help-seeker realises that solutions do not
lie within the helper (helping professional) but within a caring community
that they are a part of.
One indicator of such a caring community is the number of residents
who take an active interest in the issues within their neighbourhood.
We call them Good Samaritans and they highlight to us problems,
conflicts and families needing support in their neighbourhood. Many also
take a leadership or volunteer with projects that address issues in the
neighbourhood.  We are glad to note that we have 72 Good Samaritans
within the different neighbourhoods we work in.

5.2
About the Issues and
Problems Addressed

5.2.1
Case Management
The top 6 issues presented to us did not vary significantly after we got to
understand the family situation better. Many families were troubled by more
than one issue and the top 6 we attended to were:

•

Youth in conflict with the law, authority and peers

•

School related difficulties

•

Care & supervision of children

•

Financial difficulties

•

Family conflict

•

Parenting

These issues were usually bundled together as factors affecting family
functioning took its toll on all its members.  Hence, all issues related to
family life such finances, housing, care and supervision of children emerged
significantly as the families helped us to understand their situation (Fig 2).  
Under the “Others” category, we helped parents with issues related to
residency status, citizenship and work permits which had an impact on the
stability of their family.
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5.2.2
PROJECT MANAGEMENT
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5.3
Snapshots of
the Work

5.3.1
Case Management
These stories provide a glimpse of the peace-making and community
building approach we take in de-escalating problems.

5.3.1.1
Community Response Conference
In our regular communication with volunteers, we invite them for a
Community Response Conference where people come together to support a
member of the community who is facing serious challenges.  After briefing
the volunteers on the families’ situation and answering their questions,
all helping professionals leave the room so as not to interfere with the
community’s response we sought.
At one conference attended by only 2 volunteers, we found a tutor for 2
brothers aged 11 and 12 years old who was being cared for by their aunt.  
The tutor was also confident that she will be able to persuade her friends to
enrol the 2 boys in the martial arts classes that they conduct for free. Plans
were also made to assist the boys’ aunt with her child-minding duties and
to discuss with her a school holiday schedule for her nephews.   Despite
having only 2 volunteers present at the conference, plans were made
because they came with the support of their family and friends behind them
and we all left the conference optimistic that we could make a difference for
these boys.

5.3.1.2
Youth in conflict with the law, authority or peers
4 youths sitting outside a child care centre after a game of street soccer
suddenly noticed that there was a security camera pointing at them.  With
unexpected bravado, one of them declared that he did not like his picture
taken without his permission and the rest agreed with him.  In mock anger,
they started kicking the ball at the camera and being pretty accurate
passers of the ball, they were picked up by the police the following day for
damaging property.
When the Manager of the child care centre learnt who was responsible
for the damage, she asked us if we could arrange for the boys and their
parents to meet with her.  She told us that she recognised one of the boys
as someone whom she had taught when he was in kindergarten and was
disappointed that he was getting into trouble.
On the day of the meeting their Member of Parliament accompanied the
staff of the child care centre. He explained to the youths and their parents
that he came to know of the damage because he uses the child care centre
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to meet his constituents. He reassured the parents that he was glad that they
were there to help their children put things right.  He then told the youths
that he would like their neighbourhood to be a place where people helped
each other out. The boys nodded in understanding when he said that every
resident had a responsibility for keeping the “kampong spirit” alive and
they should protect their neighbourhood and not destroy it. Their reckless
act had rattled the parents whose children attend the child care centre as it
has caused then to worry about the safety of their children.
The session was not a talking down for the youths but a gathering of
people who believed that with some neighbourliness, a more liveable
neighbourhood would emerge.  Although it was not exactly a pleasant
occasion, both parents and youths appreciated meeting their Member of
Parliament and the concern from their neighbours for their well-being.  The
boys apologised sincerely, and told the Manager of the child care that she
could call on them to help with cleaning and other duties at the child care
centre whenever they were short-handed.
The meeting was an effort by this “village to raise their children.” Instead
of simply punishing youths who were probably feeling a little disconnected
from their community, the “village elders” forgave them and generously
appealed to their sense of belonging and responsibility to their “village.”  
It was a lesson in peace, good sense and community for impulsive young
people feeling ill at ease with themselves and those around them.

5.3.1.3
Care & supervision of children
While we do not wish problems on anyone, we do see problems as a gift
that brings people together even though people may be on opposing sides
when they gather. Our role is to help them focus on the main issue at hand
and work towards a peaceful resolution that is respectful to all.
A group of neighbours were concerned about a pair of siblings who had
been irregular at school. They had observed that these children were left on
their own whenever their father was caught up at work. As a port worker,
he kept long hours and often handed the care of his children to a friend.  
So 4 of them agreed to meet the children’s father to offer their support.  
A couple of them felt that father could be doing more and had wanted to
give him some “friendly advice” but when father showed up at the meeting,
they immediately realised that this was a man in need of support and not a
“talking to.”
One neighbour told the children that they needed to do some things for
themselves as their father always ensured that they had pocket money
for school and food on the table when they came home.  She added that
problem solving needed everybody’s cooperation and it cannot just be
the sole responsibility of their father. The support from the neighbours was
forthcoming and they came up with various suggestions how they could
improve the situation. Father agreed that his children dropped by at a
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neighbour’s house daily to sign a note book before going home so that
he would be alerted if they wandered off for long periods after school.  
However, he did not feel it was necessary for a neighbour to knock on
his door early in the morning. Another neighbour then tactfully said that
the children should be given a week to demonstrate if they could be
responsible. If not, she will knock on the door.  Father then nodded. The
meeting ended with everyone exchanging phone numbers and reminding
the children that they should be in school the next day.
It would be very difficult for social services to be caring for children in this
manner. Social services would probably place the children in an institution
which is costly and undesirable in view of the unintended ill effects of
institutionalisation. Perhaps institutions are necessary when families and
communities break down but more resources could be put into endeavours
to sustain and strengthen families and communities instead of into
responsive efforts when they fail. Moreover, strong communities bring forth
solutions and support that social services can never match.
Two siblings 14 and 15 year-old were left in the lurch when their father
died of cancer last year.  Father was working in Singapore and supporting
their education here. Their mother lived in Malaysia, and could not sustain
the children’s schooling in Singapore as she was greatly in debt, due to
the father’s medical expenses.  Their school and a church member of the
boy appealed to a corporation for sponsorship.  The amount donated
was sufficient to cover their school fees and living expenses but not their
accommodation.  Hence, we arranged for a donor to meet with mother and
her children.  He encouraged the children to study hard, persevere and stay
focussed. He assured them that he has gotten the support of a few friends
to meet their accommodation expenses until they finished their studies. This
will be a substantial amount as it will be for the long-run and so he told the
children and their mother that the donors have 3 conditions. Firstly, they do
not want the family to feel indebted to them; secondly, mother is to “hold
her children’s hands” and never let go and last but not least; help others in
need whenever they have the ability to do so.
At the end of the meeting, the donor gave the mother $100 and told her to
have a good meal and some quality time with her children while she was
in Singapore. These 2 stories are the responses of an abundant community;
responses beyond social services.
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5.3.1.4
Family Conflict
Daisy’s mother called us out of the blue “just to keep in touch.”  After the
pleasantries, we enquired about Daisy and were informed that she had
been in hospital under observation for about a week.  An adult friend at
church had noticed a fresh dressing on Daisy’s wrist and suggested to her
that Daisy needed psychiatric support.  After visiting Daisy and speaking to
her doctor and medical social worker, we suggested to Daisy’s mother that
a meeting among friends and family members who would like to support
Daisy may be helpful. Mother wasted no time; consulted Daisy as to who
should be attending the meeting and coordinated a meeting at the hospital
which involved grandmother, an aunt & uncle, Daisy’s sister, a cousin and a
family friend.
Halfway through the meeting Daisy stormed out and we took her aside
to find out why. She explained that even though we were in the room, we
would not understand the insinuations about her past mistakes that were
articulated by those in the room. She stormed out because it felt like one
big scolding session. We apologised for not facilitating a “safe enough
environment” and asked her how she would like to carry on the meeting.
Daisy said that she was really grateful that so many people cared about
her but these very people did not believe that she was grateful. Hence, we
suggested that she let them know how she felt.
When the meeting restarted, Daisy told everyone in the room that she
was really grateful for all the help they had given her. She turned to her
uncle and reminded him of the time she pushed him away after she had a
fight with her mother. In her mind, uncle was a disciplinarian and she did
not want another lecture. However, uncle patiently waited for her to calm
down and both had a very gentle and meaningful conversation about
her struggles.  She added that she valued that conversation and always
remembers how surprised she was at her uncle’s gentle kindness.  Daisy
continued to address every other family member in the room in the same
way; recalling the kindness she had received from them.  The tone of the
meeting changed and a plan where family and friends took turns to be
with Daisy for the first month after her discharge emerged. Daisy’s doctor
who was present also provided the family with some helpful tips on how to
support Daisy better.
Finally, when we asked the family who would monitor the plan, Daisy’s
uncle quickly said that he would and assured us that the family will take it
from here.
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5.3.2
Project Management
This is problem de-escalation from a community centric perspective.
Many problems exist within a context constructed by factors in the family
and the neighbourhood. Often the projects that neighbours attempt to deal
would also benefit the children, youths and families who are receiving
case management.

5.3.2.1
Theft of Bicycles
As a way of addressing the theft of bicycles in a neighbourhood, we
facilitated a community cooperation effort that involved the Police, the
grassroots organisations and Pramerica Financial Asia Headquarters Pte
Ltd called Cycles for the Community with the tagline Reviving Old Bikes,
Renewing Teen Spirit. 18 volunteers from Pramerica worked with 22
residents to refurbish 30 old bicycles as gifts for children and youths in the
neighbourhood. 4 other residents prepared the drinks and food.
Those receiving the bikes helped out too and it was explained to them that
the event was organised to reinforce this message;

1.
Don’t steal bikes or break the law,
you will only hurt yourself,
your family and people who care
about you
2.
Talk to your parents and other
adults you know and together we
can find ways to help ourselves
3.
The event is an example of parents,
neighbours and friends cooperating
to bring a little joy to children and
youths in your neighbourhood.
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I went home humbled and thankful for
having spent a most meaningful day being
revived and renewed by community.

The old bicycles were a collection of used and abandoned bikes that were
donated to us. When they were ready, the police registered them and gave
its new owner a bicycle lock. Pramerica covered the cost of the parts and
the food and we had the honour of Mr Heng Chee How, Senior Minister of
State (Prime Minister’s Office) and MP for Whampoa SMC dropping by to
thank the volunteers and encourage the children. It was a meaningful day
of sharing and giving for a total of 82 members of the community.
When the event ended after lunch, 7 bicycles could not be fixed. So
together with the help of 2 teenagers whose bikes were not fixed, I
brought them to a nearby shop. At the shop, a colleague called to inform
me that one of the boys did not have a bike as he came late and the bike
designated to him was given to someone else. So I asked him if it was true
and he nodded. After a while, I noticed that I was missing one bike and
I saw this boy not too far away with a damaged one. Well, one can’t go
very far on a bicycle with a chain that keeps coming off.
His friend was in cahoots with him but I got him to bring the boy back.
When they both came back, I told the boy that if he really wanted a
bike he could have one that was working as we definitely did not want to
call him a thief. What he had to do was show the bike he received to my
colleague so that we could account for it and get a replacement for the
person it was intended for. They listened as I reiterated what the morning’s
event was trying to achieve and were most appreciative when their
bikes were done. I was grateful for the opportunity to give these 2 boys
something they really wanted and hopeful that they cycled away a little less
distrustful of adults.
I was at the Teck Seng Ban Kee Bicycle and Motor Shop and as the bikes
were being fixed, the supervisor asked me what I was doing with so many
old bicycles. I explained the morning’s event and when I loaded the last
bicycle up the van and proceeded to pay him, he told me

“Never mind,
there’s no charge.”
I went home humbled and thankful for having spent a most meaningful day
being revived and renewed by community.

40

5.3.2.2
Youths disturbing the peace in a neighbourhood
53 families were presented with a weekend stay at the Bugis Village Hotel
by the Far East Organisation. Over the 2 weekends we arranged for 83
care-givers and 170 children to enjoy a rare “staycation.” The “staycations”
were a helpful opportunity for the families to connect with their neighbours.
Hence, we were glad to hear a mother remark that the “naughty boys are
not so naughty after all.”  She elaborated that they were caring towards
their family members and quite talented as singers and dancers. On the
whole, people were cooperative and helpful towards each other. Perhaps
they treated each other well because they were being treated well. This gift
from Far East Organisation was not just a treat but a gift of peace. For a
weekend, these families felt welcomed, experienced a sense of belonging
and enjoyed their meals. They had more than enough.  With contentment
usually comes peace.

5.4
Reflections
about Problem
De-escalation

We summed up 2012 emphasising that success resulted from the support of
the community as a whole. When authority together with family, friends and
volunteers take the view that they are working toward a shared purpose
of safeguarding children, educating youths and preserving families, the
cooperation that emerges improves the situation. Hence, we are glad that
we were able to harness the collective good intentions and resources in
the community toward some meaningful efforts for individuals, families and
neighbourhoods.
After another year of work, we would also say that success is the ability to
keep the community inspired in supporting their vulnerable members and in
addressing the issues affecting this group. The community is a resource that
must be valued, appreciated and protected. As such we need to constantly
hone our skills to be effective relationship builders, meeting coordinators,
match-makers and basically provide a leadership presence. The leadership
presence is not one that is visibly obvious but one that maintains a clarity
of context, the collective purpose and the roles of different stakeholders in
any given situation. This can be complex for any one person and we must
continue to strengthen teamwork. Teamwork also facilitates the practice of
collective responsibility and prepares us to better advocate this principle of
problem solving to families and communities
Another important realisation is that the issues that we engage the
community with are difficult and we must be mindful of spreading the load
to prevent fatigue among those who step forward.  We need to constant
nurture our existing volunteers and to seek ways to bring more on board.
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5.4
ABOUT THE
PROGRAMMES IN
THIS AREA
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6.
Family Strengthening

Family strengthening is a framework for serving children and families that is
rooted in the principle that family is the most fundamental factor influencing
the lives and outcomes of children; and families are strong when they are
respected for their desire to remain as a family and provided with the
necessary support to overcome their challenges.

There are 3 core areas which are essential to strengthening families:
1. Family Economic Success
2. Strong Family Support
3. A Sense of Community
When we journey with the families on the issues they seek help with, we are
mindful of opportunities where we can enhance these core areas.

6.1
Overview
We engaged 142 families in various
family strengthening exercises that
provided them the opportunity to
take stock of their difficulties and to
harness their abilities and resources
to resolve them. We were able to
serve more families than projected
because of the generous support
from the community.  Ha-P.com and
The Arbinger Institute Singapore
offered their programmes, resources
and expertise to our families and
the staff gratis.  Many of those
who benefitted from these gifts
told us that they were surprised but
grateful that they had learnt useful
skills that they could use to improve
relationships within their family.
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Another important gift was from
the Far East Organisation. From
a financial standpoint, it was not
prudent to renew the lease for
our premises at 10 Admiralty
Road which we had used for our
family strengthening exercises and
programmes. Thankfully after the
lease ran out in October, the Far East
Organisations arranged for us to
continue our work at Changi Cove.
They also rendered us the use of
the Bugis Village Hotel during the
Christmas season.
As helping professionals, we
evaluate the impact of our work
by how much ground families gain

in the core areas of the Family
Strengthening Model. However,
the families have a simpler way
of putting it. They showed us that
they are strong when they have the
resources and support to care and
provide for their members. Hence,
matching gifts from the community
appropriately proved to be an
important endeavour that brought
a sense of stability to the families.  
A clean and tidy home, food on
the table and a new set of school
uniform when given and received
respectfully, were concrete practical
ways that kept families strong. In
this vein we are most grateful for the
many donations in kind and funds

toward assistance with family and
educational expenses.

grounds, they passed the hat around
to help defray funeral expenses.

One gift that benefitted 532 adults
and 355 young people from 308
families was a one-year Personal
Accident Insurance Coverage.  The
premium of $24,850 was donated
by Asia Capital Reinsurance (ACR)
and the policy was administered by
SHC Insurance. It was the third year
the programme was administered
and it was a most appropriate
gift for the low-wage blue-collar
worker. The goodwill was not just a
corporate gift. When the staff from
ACR realised that a breadwinner
had passed on suddenly on medical

In sum, it was most fulfilling to
be able to connect the neediest
families to a range of resources
that alleviated their difficulties.
With these resources these families
were generally able to remain as
“the fundamental group of society
and the natural environment for
the growth and well-being of all its
members particularly children” and
we had the privilege of affording
them “the necessary protection and
assistance so that they could fully
assume their responsibilities within
the community.”(quotes adapted
from the preamble of the UN’s
Convention on the Rights of the Child.)
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6.2
ABOUT THE ISSUES ADDRESSED AND
THE IMPACT OF OUR WORK
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6.3
Snapshots of the
work

We share these stories to provide a sense of the holistic approach we take
in keeping families strong.

6.3.1
Live-in Work
A single father of 4 had his children
lined up behind him as he stretched
out his hands playing the “motherhen” protecting “her chicks” from
the eagle.  Dad was initially a little
inhibited but as he got the hang
of this age-old children’s game,
he was combatively determined
that he did not lose any of his
“chicks.”  When all the squealing
and laughter had died down, two
of his children aged 8 and 6 years
old reflected, ‘My father protects us’
and ‘My father is our Superhero’
respectively.  Thus, began a 3 day
stay at our Family Learning Centre
for this family of 5 with the goal of
improving cooperation within the
family.  Dad was exhausted being
both breadwinner and homemaker
and the stay was a timely break for
the entire family during the school
holidays that week.
“What exactly is a super-hero who
protects?” This was the thought
guiding different activities that
helped the children to better
appreciate the roles their father
played.  Often, it does not take
much for children to appreciate the
struggles of adults and so when
we got the family in a circle and
asked them to share their wish
for their family, the 13 year old
daughter said that it was for all

the siblings to tackle the household
chores cooperatively. Her siblings
immediately nodded and that
pleased dad immensely.
We are guided by the principle
that “social problems are best
resolved within the community and
are opportunities for community
building.”  As such, we would like
to see the work we do executed
in the spirit of people cooperating
with one another rather than people
serving beneficiaries.  Hence, we
were very grateful for the manner
in which 3 fellow professionals from
Life Community Services joined us
in accompanying this family. When
we found out the family was also
known to them, we invited them to
join us and knew that it was the right
decision when one of them told us
‘that sitting on the beach sharing
a happy moment with a troubled
family was social work.’
We were also very grateful for the
effort of a member who took time
off from work to meet this father.
She did not know this father but
as the father was open to listening
to someone who has had serious
challenges with her children, she
came by to share her story.  She
offered a mother’s perspective of
raising a teenage girl and shared

several useful parenting tips. One
suggestion that the father will
consider was to create a cosy
meeting corner outside his flat.
This mother gave her daughter
permission to entertain friends
at the cosy corner as a reward
for doing something right. It was
an affordable incentive for good
behaviour which her daughter
appreciated and she got to know
her daughter’s friends better.
The 3 days passed quickly for the
family and the highlight for the
father was a surprise visit from 3 of
his sisters who joined the family for
dinner. They came by to meet the
children and let their brother know
that they thought well of him as a
father.  When dinner was about to
begin, the oldest sister offered a
prayer in thanksgiving and asked
God to take care of their nieces and
nephew.   As ice cream was served,
the younger children presented their
father with a card, which listed his
strengths.  As they handed over the
card, they said ‘Thank you Bapak
for giving us water and food.’
When we seek to resolve social
problems in the community, we will
most likely find solutions within the
community.
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6.3.2
Workshops and
Training

a. Joy-Care Parenting Workshop
A couple showed up at the workshop visibly listless. The husband had
outstanding matters with the police and they had difficulty settling their
household bills. When the day was over, they came to us hand-in-hand
sharing that the workshop helped them realise how much they appreciated
each other and were confident that together they would overcome their
current difficulties.
For us, we were filled with a sense of gratitude and humility after a long
and exhausting day. The 35 parents had not only trusted us with the care
of their children (55 altogether) but they had trusted us with their anxieties,
fears and other vulnerabilities as they learned new skills to improve their
well-being and that of those around them.  They learned to activate positive
emotions within themselves not as a means to escape from their issues but
as a way to strengthen themselves to authentically deal with them.  To
quote Ha-P.com, “It is not to enough to wish, think, visualize and pray.
Positive thinking without the real work becomes negative sinking.”
Working on an issue definitely requires effort but perhaps it is “easier done
than said.”  During a home visit, mother and her children greeted us with
the cheer that was used to mark the end of one exercise and the start of
another during the workshop.  “Ho, ho! Ha,ha, ha, yeah!” was as warm
and welcoming a greeting as any other that  brought big smiles all around.  
This mother told us that she remembers happy times when her family used
to have sing-a-longs and she is now determined to get that going again and
has begun teaching her children to cheer.  She reasoned that it is a simple
and affordable way to increase joy and care at home.
In sum, we are grateful to have spent a day with parents who openly
received and gave joy and care to each other.  It was a privilege to be in
the same room with them experiencing and sharing a range of emotions
that danced between laughter and tears, embarrassment and confidence,
tension and relief. Joy-Care Parenting has been designed to reach
participants with messages from the heart. Perhaps, messages from the
heart get heart-landers responding with all their heart.
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b. Arbinger Core in Relationships
Have we ever agreed to do something for someone else and forgot?  After which, did we have all sorts of “valid”
reasons that justified why we forgot or why that agreement was not so important in the first place? If so, we have
not been responsible.
49 persons comprising 34 care-givers and their teenage children and 15 staff members were introduced to the
problem of self-deception during the Arbinger Core in Relationships and Family Programme last weekend.  In all,
16 families comprising 66 persons were present for a weekend stay to learn how to improve our relationships
within our families. For the staff present, apart from learning the Arbinger model, being there inevitably got us
thinking about the effectiveness of our relationships at work too.
The Arbinger Institute helps organisations, families, individuals, and communities worldwide to correct the trouble
created by the little known but pervasive problem of self-deception. Arbinger is headquartered in the United States
but has operations around the world. Last weekend, they donated their expertise and worked with us to bring their
programme to our families.
We expected twice the number of families and participants but on Saturday morning, 9 out of 10 of those
with infants did not show up. Thus, we had a bunch of volunteers waiting to care for the babies who were left
disappointed with the no-show.  As the people who rallied their support, moments like that do put us in an
awkward position and cast a doubt over the whole notion of community and volunteering.  Hence, we are most
grateful that even though their time and energy were not utilised well, these volunteers continued to give us their
understanding and friendship.
We were expecting at least 60 children and had more than 60 volunteers scheduled to care for them through
the day while their care-givers and elder siblings were attending the Arbinger training.  Even though there were
a lot less children, volunteers from Bank of America Merrill Lynch, the Institute of Technical Education, National
University of Singapore, National Institute of Education and several others who came as individuals did not let the
poor attendance get to them. They were here to give the children a safe and enjoyable time and they made sure
they did it responsibly.
Getting last weekend’s event going was actually getting people in a community coming together in happiness and
cooperation and as such, it felt like we were getting a celebration going.  Personally, I celebrated the unintended
outcome of being in the same classroom with families who utilised our services. Learning together as fellow
students; trying to understand the teacher somehow got us understanding each other a little better and seeing each
other as people
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6.3.3
Financial Assistance

6.3.4
Concrete
Practical Help

Two siblings 14 and 15 year-old
were left in the lurch when their
father died of cancer last year.  
Father was working in Singapore
and supporting their education here.
Their mother lived in Malaysia,
and could not sustain the children’s
schooling in Singapore as she was
greatly in debt, due to the father’s
medical expenses.  Their school
and a church member of the boy
appealed to a corporation for
sponsorship.  The amount donated
was sufficient to cover their school
fees and living expenses but not
their accommodation.  Hence,
we arranged for a donor to meet
with mother and her children.  He
encouraged the children to study
hard, persevere and stay focussed.
He assured them that he has gotten
the support of a few friends to meet
their accommodation expenses until
they finished their studies. This will
be a substantial amount as it will be
for the long-run and so he told the
children and their mother that the
donors have 3 conditions. Firstly,
they do not want the family to feel
indebted to them; secondly, mother
is to “hold her children’s hands” and
never let go and last but not least;
help others in need whenever they
have the ability to do so.

When Gideon a volunteer architect
asked a family of 6 what they
wished for in their apartment they
remained silent. The family live in
a simple L-shaped flat and when
Gideon suggested personal space
and a dining area, the children
exchanged glances briefly and
then continued to look at him
incredulously. Gideon persisted,
“I know you don’t have much
space but we can arrange things
a little differently and make a few
changes.”  Gideon then proceeded
to draw the L-shaped space on the
wall and stressed, “There is always
room for improvement!”

At the end of the meeting, the donor
gave the mother $100 and told
her to have a good meal and some
quality time with her children while
she was in Singapore.

looking in would have thought
that they were not interested. They
had to be cajoled to offer their
suggestions and opinions but it
would be more accurate to say that
they had to be cajoled to believe
that there was indeed room for
improvement. Despite reassuring the
parents that a group of volunteers
will be covering the expenses
incurred, they remained silent.
But as their children took turns to
contribute to the floor plan on the
wall, they relaxed, smiled a little
and father even stepped forward
to show Gideon where the washing
machine could be.

Happiness is letting the light in.
We had the privilege of using a
meeting room provided by Far East
Organisation that had walls we
could write on. They had an enamel
paint finish and doodles with a white
board marker were easily cleaned
off with a cloth. Just watching
Gideon drawing and writing on the
wall was already a little show for
those of us who were raised never
to write on the wall. Eventually, a
teenager in the family said that she
would like a mirror and that got
mother asking for storage space
for the children’s books, bags and
clothes.
Although this was a discussion
the family had wanted, someone

A family where its members are
at odds with each other may not
need space away from each other.
Instead, they may need a space
where they can be cooperating.
Gideon’s support was not just
creating space in the family’s
apartment but also space in their
relationships for a shared purpose
and happiness.  As the parents
got into the discussion, mother
expressed that she wanted the
apartment to be bright and father
said that he wanted the windows
unobstructed. Though expressed in
different ways, it seems liked the
parents agree that “happiness is
letting the light in.”

https://vimeo.com/83287286
password : Beyond
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6.4
Our Reflections

We ended last year with the intention of exposing as many families as
possible to the concept of family strengthening as it would reduce their
sense of isolation. We also felt that by using mass activities, families will
meet more people in a natural and non-threatening way. Hence, we are
very grateful that this was realised.  In this vein, we shared our resources
with 144 families receiving assistance from the Singapore Anti-Narcotics
Association. The pooling of resources resulted in  mass live-in workshops
that provided these families an opportunity to affirm  their members through
various activity-based learning exercises. Inter-agency collaboration that
creates new opportunities for service-users made sense and must continue in
the spirit of cooperation that adds to the work.
Sadly, the importance of getting our families better integrated into the
community was driven home starkly when we noticed that those who were
reluctant to involve the support of friends and extended family had poorer
outcomes following their participation in a family strengthening exercise.
The learning from previous years of family strengthening work still hold
true. When there is clarity of purpose, the choice of activity or programme
is less critical. Once we know where we are going, most ‘vehicles’ will
get us there.  We would say that it is not so much what we do but how
we do it.  The attitude of the staff and volunteers, the energy put in, the
willingness and genuineness to truly want to spend time with the families
and discovering their stories made the difference.  We could literally see
the “walls” around the family coming down when they allowed us wholeheartedly into their lives.  It was a real privilege and it taught us that
success is not just the outcomes we seek but the quality of the partnership
between the families and us. We define a helping relationship as a
partnership and success is when we and the families are able to work
together purposefully, constructively and effectively.
Moving forward, we must consciously share and discuss with the families
the notion that working together is success.  We must highlight the risk of
the helping relationship becoming just a contractual transaction. Instead it
should be a mutually rewarding partnership for them and for us.  
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6.5
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a. Family Learning Centre

b. Home Ownership Plus Education
(HOPE) Scheme

c. Youth United – Family Decision
Making Component
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6.6
Staff

Assistant Directors

Ms Martha Chai
Ms Pascale Paul

Managers

Ms Tan Hooi Boon

Community Workers

Ms Dhivyaa V Logan from 1 Dec
Ms Joanne Yau
Ms Lena-Ann Shome
Ms Najma Banu
Mr Shashikaran Kalimuthu
Ms Wong Pei Ling
Ms Tan Pui San,Phoeon
Ms Vicnesh s/o Mathavan
Ms Vera Cecilia de Mello

Community Work Assistant

Mr Bienvenido Argamosa
till 18 Nov

Ms Helen Ho
Ms Nickalas. Pushparani
till 18 Nov

54

7.

COMMUNITY INTEGRATION
AND DEVELOPMENT
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7.
Community Integration and Development
Community integration and development facilitates “a village” that has
the capacity and capability to raise their children well. The work is built
on the operating principle that when children and youths are integrated
as responsible members of their community, they are less likely to get into
trouble and the community is more likely to look out for their best interest.
The “village” is nurtured and kept alive by a focus on 8 desired outcomes
which we believe bring about neighbourhoods that care for their young
people well.

8 DESIRED OUTCOMES
1.

A long-term engagement/relationship with all youths (Keeping in touch with service-users until they are 25).

2.

Neighbourhoods that take a restorative approach towards young offenders and multiple problem families.

3.

A culture of learning and education among children and youths

4.

A culture of employment among the care-givers of our young people and other adult residents

5.

A high level of voluntarism and community participation among children, youths and their care-givers.

6.

Increased family involvement and competence in resolving their difficulties

7.

Cooperation  among helping agencies that provide meaningful programmes for our service-seers

8.

Increased cooperation among civil society that support long-term relationships/
”friendships” with our service-users

Outcomes 2, 6 and 8 were reported
under Problem De-escalation, Family
Strengthening and Partnership and
Talent Development respectively.
The other outcomes are reported in
this chapter.
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7.1
OVERVIEW
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the Desired Outcomes
7.2
Progress on

7.2.1
A long-term engagement/
friendship with children and youths
Position Overview
We build strong communities and that means we build strong relationships
among people. We are facilitating this by engaging young people, their
families and their community from low income communities for the long run,
nurturing friendships with others within their natural networks as well as
those from their larger community.
Highlights
We reached 5,628 young people below 25 years old of which, 2,493 were
connected to regular programmes in the community.
The outreach activities such as door-knocking and scheduled walkabout in
the neighbourhoods resulted in many meaningful conversations about how
residents’ could contribute toward the well-being of their neighbourhood.  
We observed that people were generally receptive of the notion that
they had a responsibility to do something for the betterment of their
neighbourhood. Hence, we were grateful that our regular outreach efforts
seem to have facilitated a narrative of mutual help and concern within the
neighbourhoods we engaged.
Challenges
The work is resource intensive and we could do with a lot more volunteers.
For meaningful contact,  2 volunteers need to spend about 30 minutes in
each household. Hence, a 2- hour door knocking session with 12 volunteers
will only enable us to make contact with 20 families with children.
We need to be better at connecting young people to programmes. This
requires time and skilful engagement, which was a combination of resources
we could do more with.
Moving forward
We are building a constituent relationship management system and
eventually a contact centre to pro-actively contact and connect young
people to the mainstream  In the process we also need to be building our
capacity and capability in engaging young people.
Snapshot of efforts at long-term friendship.
Youth United Day was meaningful for me in more ways than one. Building
Futures through Friendships is what we have been saying and it was really
most heartening to know that these friendships have lasted. Several young
adults, who were in our guidance and residential programmes some years
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ago, came by last Sunday to say “hello.” One of them told me that the
first Sunday of July will always remind him of his time at Beyond and so he
thought that he should drop by just to catch up with old friends.
A young mother who will be turning 21 soon, shared with me her plans
to get a flat of her own. She is looking forward to having her 2 year old
child back home with her husband and her.  At the moment her child is
in foster care but she stressed that she always discharges her parental
responsibilities within the fostering framework. She told me of trips to the
doctor and the precious weekend meetings with her child. She also shared
that she is training to be an early childhood educator and this has helped
her become a confident young parent.
Another young man shared that he was now a fitness instructor. With a
smile, I asked him about the tattoo he had that said “alcohol-fuelled.”
He laughed and assured me it is still there but it is covered up when he
is working. Several others came by to speak about their studies or their
jobs and their presence was a present to all of us who had extended our
friendship to them.
It was also most encouraging to see more than 80 people comprising
partners, donors, volunteers, youths and their families enjoying a
conversation and sharing their experiences at Beyond.  In one small group,
a parent shared that having wasted many years of his life incarcerated; he
was now “catching up” by trying to be a good father and a helpful member
of the community.  As he elaborated by sharing about a food distribution
exercise he was involved in, a volunteer from a corporation interjected and
said that she was there too and she remembered him. The parent looked
at her briefly and then said yes, he remembered her too and both started
reminiscing about the day like old friends.
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7.2.2
A culture of learning and education
Position Overview
We want to impress on parents that all children can learn and that their
families and the community play an important role in encouraging their
progress.  We will work together with strategic partners and volunteers to
provide learning activities; facilitate family involvement and we celebrate
learning achievements of the community.  Our role is to help young people
and their families to discover their motivation to learn and support them to
act on it.
Highlights
517 (66%) out of 776 identified primary school children are engaged
through LIFE and interest groups with the help of about 200 volunteers and
70 parents.
Increase in attendance at the Healthy Start Child Development Centre from
68% to 77%. This is attributed to the consistent effort at involving parents
as key stakeholders. Chatting over a drink and some snacks when they pick
up their children and  regular parent teacher meetings and events were the
main means of engagement.
6 conversations with parents to understand support needed and increase
involvement. We made headway in increasing parent involvement in our
learning programmes.
4 conversations with children and youths in interest groups to understand
aspirations and challenges.
170 volunteers regularly encouraging and inspiring children to learn.
6 structured programmes that encouraged learning in collaboration with
partners.
5 neighbourhoods celebrated learning achievements with the support of
grassroots, volunteers, partners and donors.

Challenges
252 out of 400(63%) primary school contacted  are failing in
English or Maths
Supporting and engaging more parents to be part of children’s’ learning
as most are working and have multiple issues to attend to
Engaging and collaborating partners like Mendaki and soccer clubs
to understand the needs these children so that they can be included in
mainstream programs
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Learning is Fun and Exciting
Moving Forward
Facilitating opportunities for parents to be part of their children’s’ learning.
This also means matching parents and their children well to partners and
volunteers. Thoughtful match-making  increases the success of the “homeschool” partnership.
Snapshot of efforts at creating a culture of learning
When we tell children that “Learning Is Fun and Exciting,” many simply tell
us that we lie. Hence, it was disappointing but not unexpected when no
children turned up at the arranged time and place for a science workshop
in the neighbourhood.  Our volunteers from the Hwa Chong Interact Club
had prepared several hands-on ways for children to discover concepts and
facts in science.
As we were about to close shop, we met some teenagers who told us that
the children had informed them of the science activity and so they must
have simply forgotten. The teenagers told us not to go away and within 15
minutes, they returned with 30 children below 12 years old for the activity.
5 parents also came along.
Old newspapers were handed out and the children in groups of 5 sat on
them as they gathered around a science activity laid out on the floor.  Some
built “volcanoes” and learnt about how they are formed while others raced
“balloon-powered” cars to determine how the changing of variables like
the size of the balloon or the length of straw which supported the body of
the car affected speed.  The children found learning to be fun and exciting
and for us, we were convinced of this when those who asked to go to the
toilet actually returned. Perhaps, they had returned for the most popular
acticity which was learning how to make a “barel-o-slime” from some white
glue, flour, liquid starch and green food colouring.  This popular goo costs
quite a bit at the shops and everyone was glad to bring home some.
It turned out to be a most enjoyable afternoon with lots of cooperation,
communication and interactive learning. It was an afternoon where
relationships were nurtured and a sense of community built. Somehow, it is
always a lot more meaningful for children when they learn by interacting
with people who care about them rather than simply learning from
computers or books. After all, information is not the same as communication
and cooperation.  And, I am sure you will agree with me that it is not just
children but all of us would certainly appreciate a little more cooperation
and communication in our lives.
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7.2.3.
A culture of employment
Position Overview
Community is strengthened when people cooperate for mutual benefit.
Participating in income-generation endeavours reduces marginalization.
When people develop a sense of enterprise, they are learning to help
themselves.
Highlights
208 job club members were recruited across 5 neighbourhoods
2 mutual help groups with 29 members active
• Sew Can I (8 members)
• Café Beyond (21 members)
3 training opportunities benefitted 19 job club members
59 persons benefitted from 77 job referrals.
45 members earned a collective income of  $35,233.95 (average of $783)
There is  a pool of 40 employers (mainly Sales, Cleaning, F& B & Security)
40 volunteers mainly helping out with recruitment of job club members
Challenges
Regular employment for our members was not realistic for reasons ranging
from personal competencies, life challenges and background concerns.
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Moving Forward
An average income of $450 per member per month
Collaborating with employers to address hindrances to employment of
our members
Facilitating more mutual help income generating opportunities as they are
the most viable means to put money in the pockets of members unable to
secure regular employment.
Snapshot of efforts at creating a culture of employment
30 parents and care-givers listened as the boss of a food and beverage
patiently explained the various jobs available at his outlets.  He sensed that
our members were a little intimidated when he showed them photographs
of his restaurants and immediately reassured them that they will be trained
and groomed for the work.  Working at a restaurant where one would never
dream of patronizing was quite a step to take for many of our members.
Hence, collaborating well with employers was a critical factor for success.
The Human Resource Manager then shared a little about the work
culture her company was nurturing and an employee shared about how
he had made good at the company despite a chequered past.  After the
presentations, our members mingled with those from the restaurant over food
and drinks to continue exploring the possibility of work.  It was not just an
employment exercise; it was people in a community helping each other out.
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7.2.4
A high level of youth voluntarism and
community participation
Position Overview
Youth development is about developing leadership among young people
and not simply keeping them occupied. We nurture youth leadership
by facilitating voluntarism. This is also done with a view of nurturing
community leaders for the longer run. We also aim to facilitate community
participation through these youth-led endeavours
Highlights
More than 400 youths volunteered at least twice during the year in various
community programmes in their neighbourhood.
About 10% took up leadership roles and 20% helped out at least once a
month. Helped out at least 4 to 6 times during the year.
Challenges
We need to improve our ability in engaging youths as partners. It is
always easier to be the youth leader taking charge. As partners we need
to harness our collective energy and enthusiasm for a shared purpose
towards the betterment of others.
Moving Forward
At least 30% of youth membership should have volunteered as aligned
with the national volunteering percentage.
Snapshot of efforts at creating a high level of youth voluntarism and
community participation
We have invited more than 200 youths for some snacks and a
conversation to understand why they have volunteered their time and
energy to assist others in their neighbourhoods.  Each of them received an
invitation card to a meeting of “Community Champions.”  On the reverse,
there were columns of check boxes such as delivered items to neighbours,
took care of younger children, coordinated food distribution exercises and
so forth. The last checkbox read “You are a volunteer!”
While the young people were appreciative of the invitation, many told us
that they did not think it was a big deal to be helpful. They did not regard
themselves as volunteers but simply as neighbours doing what came
naturally.  They said that it felt good to be helpful and they would continue
to do so. One teen shared that her 6 year old sister who would usually not
leave her flat now follows her whenever she needs to deliver a bag of rice.
Once, to enable her 6 year old sister to help, she repacked a 5 kg pack
of rice into smaller packets that she could carry.  The 6 year old felt good
helping a neighbour and now looks forward to doing so again.
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Progressing partnership
into friendship
7.2.5
Facilitating cooperation among helping
agencies for the benefit of our members
Position Overview
To harness and direct the available professional/designated resources
in the community for the benefit of our members in the neighbourhoods
we serve.  We form strategic partnerships with a view of progressing
friendships into partnerships and into programmes that are a resource
in the community i.e. part of the village. Each year we will focus on
few relationships that will help bring our work into the mainstream. For
2013 these were the HPB, the police and the primary schools in Central
Singapore District.
Highlights
Parent workshops across 5 neighbourhoods with HPB
Cycles of the community a joint project with the police to address bicycle
theft. The success of this programme was the active participation of the
youths, their families, the corporate sponsor, the police and the leadership
from the grassroots organisations.
Started quarterly communication with 23 schools
Usage of grassroots facilities for educational and other programmes
Cooperation with the Red Pencil Foundation enabled our children to
benefit from art therapy. On the whole, we had many resources for sports,
the arts, personal development training and other activities to engage our
youths and their families.
Narcotics Anonymous and Augustine Support Group remained as
assessable resources for those afflicted with addiction difficulties.
Challenges
Our objective of positioning a programme as a resource in the community
requires the community to agree at the leadership and the participant
levels. This requires a constant thoughtful engagement of all stakeholders.  
Objectives of different stakeholders are seldom initially aligned and we
must regard partnership building as an ongoing process.
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Moving Forward
We will continue building on the existing partnerships with a view of
keeping resources from professional agencies accessible to our members.
Snapshot of efforts at facilitating cooperation among helping agencies
for the benefit of our members
Our youths were participating in a football tournament that was an effort
by the police to reinforce the anti-crime message in the community. As
such, we were invited to the prize presentation ceremony where the
Member of Parliament and senior police officers were present.  While
speaking to the MP and the police officers, we suggested working together
on a project to refurbish old bicycles for youths as a way of inculcating
self-help and reducing the incidence of bicycle thefts. The idea was well
received and we were put in touch with the relevant police and grassroots
leaders who could support us. The project was planned and executed
within 2 months.

7.3
Reflections
The focused approach to build “that village that raises the child” enabled us to lay the foundation for important
outcomes that will shape a neighbourhood for the longer-run. A culture of education and employment, a
restorative climate, youth voluntarism and the other aspects of neighbourhood life once established and
continually strengthened will collectively be a strong protective factor against youth delinquency and
other poverty related problems. Being the first year we managed with designated teams for each of these
neighbourhood aspects, we grappled with the clarity of what each team had to achieve. However, going
forward, we are optimistic that we will get sharper and each desired outcome or neighbourhood aspect will
translate into more support and opportunities for young people to steer clear of trouble.
We are glad to note that the heightened awareness to share the load with the community had resulted in
increased parental involvement in our learning programmes.  In the Healthy Start Child Development Centre,
parental involvement led to better attendance. Thus, we were reminded that effective problem solving always
requires the cooperation and commitment of all stakeholders. All stakeholders in any given situation must be part
of the solution.
This community development approach also brought forth an abundance of resources for youths and their
families. We are indeed fortunate that we live in country where there is much to share but we have not always
been successful in directing the resources to those who need it most. To be a better broker of resources we need
to strengthen our ability to communicate with different stakeholders. We need to carry meaningful conversations
with those who give and those who receive.  We learnt that our work is not simply match-making people-in-need
to resources; it is also match-making expectations, understanding and people’s readiness for new experiences.
We learnt that the familiar though not ideal is often comfortable and change is seldom immediate. Also, diversity
needs a safe and strong holding environment before it becomes a strength and resource for the common good.
Going forward, we need to hone our match-making competency and this means our ability to attend, understand
and cooperate with all stakeholders.
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7.4
ABOUT THE PROGRAMMES IN THIS WORK AREA
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7.5
Staff

Assistant Directors

Ms Christina Joy Eruthyanathan

Manager

Mr Yet Tun Hoong

Administrators

Sr Danielle Pang
Ms Seo Geok Hong from 25 Feb

Assistant Administrators

Ms Teo Mui Hui from 9 Jan
Ms Then Mui Choo

Community Workers

Ms Adrina Tie
Ms Anne Marie Ong
Ms Cecilia Matilde Tagle
from 18 Nov

Ms Charisa Leow
Ms Dhivyaa V Loganathan
from 2 Dec

Ms Erica Sue Lim from 22 July
Mr George Joseph
Ms Hemalatha Paramasivan
from 4 Mar
Mr Iskandar Abdul Latiff
Ms Marilyn Ann Sundram
Mr Nicholas Yu
Ms Noor Izzaty Binte Ishak
from 25 Jul

Ms Nur Irfah Abdul Majeed
Ms Phoeon Tan
Mr S Raghu
Ms Sarojathevi Manickam
Mr Sebastian Tan
Mr Stephen Rajah
Mr Vincent Kwek
Mr Yao Pei Kang till 5 Mar
Ms Zeng Wanyi
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Learning Co-ordinators

Ms Ashley Dachler till 30 Jun
Ms Eva Hamsha
Ms N Rajaletchumiy
Mr Jerel Louie till 12 May
Ms Teresa Baptist till 22 Oct

Principal

Ms Kendy Siew till 25 Apr
Mr Teo Tze Wei from 22 Apr

Project Leader
Home School Partnership

Ms Ng Bee Leng till 1 Oct

Head Teacher

Ms Sua Swee Lee

Teachers

Ms Azah Binte Hamid from 5 Nov
Ms Chew Wenyu
Ms Lee Meiyi
Ms Noraidah Helmee
Ms Nurul Izzah Jumail
Ms Salamiah Bahtiar
Ms Salwani Ismail
Ms Siti Aisyah Abdul Hadi

Housekeeper & Cook

Ms Loh Keng Chin
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8.
Partnership & Talent Development
8.1
Fund Raising
A total of $3,234,888 was raised. The main sources of funds were as follows:

Donor

Amount

1.

The MILK Fund

2.

Singapore Turf Club

$100,000

3.

M1 Limited

$66,811.5

4.

BGC Partners (Singapore) Limited

$53,386.20

5.

Silver Loft Investment Corporation Limited

$52,379.34

6.

United Nations Development Fund for Women (Singapore Chapter)

$35,305.11

7.

MFS International Ltd

$25,000

8.

Jumbo Valley Pte Ltd

$24,652

9.

The Community Foundation of Singapore

10. Energy Market Authority
11. Huawei International Pte Ltd

$2,000,000

$15,851.48
$15,771.40
$13,860

12. Tanglin Trust School Ltd

$12,526.90

13. Ngee Ann Polytechnic

$10,274.70

14. Lee Foundation Singapore

$10,000

15. CA Technologies

$10,000

We thank MILK Fund for being a strong supporter of
our work, through their generous donation as well as
their partnership.
Part of our fund raising efforts include appeal letters to
regular donors, partners and foundations which are sent
out just before Youth Day in July. These letters give Beyond
an opportunity to update our supporters on the work and
its direction. We raised $58,144through this effort.

In 2012, there were 69 corporate donors whereas
in 2013, there were only 43 corporate donors. It is
observed that amongst the 43 corporate donors of
2013, only 50% of which are in fact returning donors
from 2012.
Out of the 43 corporate donors that made contributions
to Beyond in 2013, about 30% of which have opted for
numerous regular contributions within the span of one year.
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8.2
Respectful and meaningful giving
There were many occasions of meaningful giving, and it was not restricted to cash donations. We have highlighted
a few below, which touched us and our beneficiaries:
a. Tanglin Trust House Challenge 2013
On the 25th -26th of April the teachers of Tanglin Trust School (TTS) cycled from Kuala Lumpur and back to their
school in 24 hours. This effort coincided with their house day and the children of TTS collectively ran the distance
between KL and Singapore in their school premises (completing 25m shuttle runs). The students together with the
teachers raised a generous sum of $29,242 to fund our Family Learning Centre. Thank you Tanglin Trust. Your act
of giving has benefitted the many families we serve.
b. Cycles for the Community - Reviving Old Bikes, Renewing Teen Sprit
As a way of addressing the theft of bicycles in a neighbourhood, we facilitated a community cooperation effort
that involved the Police, the grassroots organisations and Pramerica Financial Asia Headquarters Pte Ltd called
Cycles for the Community with the tagline Reviving Old Bikes, Renewing Teen Spirit. 18 volunteers from Pramerica
worked with 22 residents to refurbish 30 old bicycles as gifts for children and youths in the neighbourhood. The
old bicycles were a collection of used and abandoned bikes that were donated to us.  When the bikes were fixed,
the police registered them and gave its new owner a bicycle lock. Pramerica covered the cost of the bicycle parts
that needed replacing and the refreshments and we had the honour of Mr Heng Chee How, Senior Minister of
State (Prime Minister’s Office) and MP for Whampoa SMC dropping by to thank the volunteers and encourage the
children.  It was a meaningful day of sharing and giving for a total of 82 members of the community.
c. Food donations & distributions
We have been very fortunate to have had corporate donors and partners participate actively in food donations
& distributions as they often see this as an opportunity to befriend our families, get introduced to our work and
interact with the families in the community. Apart from food rations, donors have been giving towards festive
goody bags during Chinese New Year, Hari Raya and Deepavali. These packs were specially put together for
each festival either for the families to cook a special meal, or consisted of festive snacks.
In 2013, approximately 1542 packs were distributed. Participating corporates/ partners were involved in the
planning, sourcing of vendors and distribution of food packs to families. Thank you all for your time, effort and
resources. Your thoughtful giving has reassured our families that we live in a compassionate society.
d. Buy a flower, Give Hope
Ngee Ann Polytechnic – School of Humanities & Social Sciences (HMS) involved 600 freshmen to do deeds of
kindness as part of the orientation programme. The freshmen learnt to make balloon-sculpture flowers and sought
a minimum donation of $2 per flower from the public. Through their fundraising efforts, they raised $8,000 in a
single day.A big thank you to the staff and students of HMS who believe in the goodness of our work and continue
to support our cause through their active involvement.
e. Staycation at Bugis Village Hotel
53 families were presented with a weekend stay at the Bugis Village Hotel by the Far East Organisation. This
was arranged over two weekends for 83 care-givers and 170 children. The generous hospitality from Far East
Organisation included meals and transportation to Orchard Road to view the Christmas light-up. This gift from
Far East Organisation was not just a treat but a gift of peace. For a weekend, these families felt welcomed,
experienced a sense of belonging and enjoyed their meals. Thank you Far East for your generosity and compassion
and being a meaningful resource for our work.
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8.3
Events

Youth United Day 2013
The Youth United Day Celebrations bring together youth of varying
backgrounds, their care-givers and support network, and members of the
larger community such as corporates, volunteers and other stakeholders to
celebrate National Youth Day and recognize youth for their contributions to
the community. The tagline was “Building Futures through Friendship”.  
It was a dynamic and youth driven event as the activities chosen were
based on the youth’s interest. Where possible the activities were also
planned and organised by the youth. A total of 1545 people came down to
enjoy the event., A total of 98 youth were recognised as local community
leaders, 100 youth were part of the family day concert, and 200 family
members attended the outdoor carnival. Zouk opened its dance floor and
had free flow of soft drinks for the 945 youth who spent the afternoon
dancing to the latest music played by Zouk’s deejays. The event was ably
supported by 70 volunteers, who took up active leadership roles.
Our appreciation to Zouk for making the event possible, the youth for
sharing their energy, and the volunteers, donors and families for showing
their support.
Graduation 2013
The graduation ceremony which was called ‘Celebration of learning’ took
place at the five neighbourhoods we serve in, namely Ang Mo Kio, Bukit
Ho Swee, Henderson, Lengkok Bahru, and Whampoa, as well as The
Healthy Start Child Development Centre (HSCDC), our preschool. Other
than those who completed PSLE, O and N level exams, Special Awards
were also presented to exemplary graduates who have done well in sports
and the arts.
We also took the opportunity to recognise parents in the communities
who have successfully completed developmental courses. A mother was
acknowledged for completing a Fundamentals Certificate in Earlychildhood
Care and Development course and becoming an assistant teacher in the
HSCDC. Her accomplishment was made possible through her determination
and supported by a kind donor who believed in her abilities._
The Graduation brought together a total of 388 graduates and 575 family
members. Corporate and community partners generously supported these
ceremonies through monetary donations, sponsorships and gifts.
The children had an opportunity to showcase their interest groups and there
was a mini exhibition done with the help of NIE volunteers to showcase the
different learning activities in the neighbourhood. The children and their
parents volunteered towards organising the event, and that made the events
a community effort.
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8.4
Volunteer Development
18 in-house volunteer orientations were conducted and 236 volunteers
participated to find out more about us and our beliefs about community
building. We also conducted Volunteer Orientation 2 which involves doorknocking and conducting surveys with families so that volunteers could have
first hand experience interacting with the families. 5 such sessions were
conducted where 31 volunteers attended in all. We also started conducting
Befriender Training sessions since Oct 13 to help volunteers understand
their role, principles and ethics as well as an awareness on how their values
could influence their befriending roles. 24 volunteers were trained over 4
sessions. We also trained some volunteers and parents on ‘Problem Solving
in Primary School Mathematics’.

8.5
Talent Development

Some of the volunteer bonding
events for this year included:

• Kayaking session
• Captain’s Ball session
• Balloon Sculpting workshop
• Bowling appreciation event

Arbinger “Core In Relationships And Family” Workshop
Arbinger South East Asia conducted a session for families served by
Beyond addressing family conflicts and how they can take responsibility
for these conflicts. The session was also opened to staff who engage the
families, to create a common language for conflict transformation. By being
fellow participants in the same workshop, the families and staff realised
that everyone has problems and the way we deal with it is what matters.
Arbinger shared its technology so participants can consider ways to
enhance the quality of relationships and efforts with the most central people
in their lives. The course focused on exploring the source of conflicts, and a
framework to strengthen bonds, nurture relationships and minimize conflict.
15 staff and 76 adult caregivers from 34 families attended the 2-day
session.
We thank Mr Senthiyl SSG for conducting the sessions and for his generous
sharing.

Journey Beyond
The Beyond Learning Journey continued with fortnightly sessions of Journey
Beyond conducted in-house as well as staff sent for other courses externally.
Journey Beyond was to get the teams organized and focused on the
key principles, and work processes. It was also an opportunity to seek
commitment to the cause. The sessions provided a platform for honest
sharing and open discussions.
Staff took turn to lead the sessions, and share with their colleagues on their
specific team roles, so that everyone could understand how the different
aspects fit in to create a more abundant community.
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Social Leadership Singapore
Chris Joy, one of the assistant directors attended the Social Leadership
Singapore (SLS) Programme, a 5-month intensive course for leaders in the
sector. SLS is an experiential and intense programme aimed at generating
breakthroughs for the non-profit sector that can improve the well-being and
quality of life of Singaporeans, and at transforming participants that attend.
SALT training by The Constellation
30 staff and local community attended this three day course on using the
SALT methodology to engage communities. SALT is an acronym for Stimulate,
Appreciate, Link or Learn and Transfer. This is a practice of facilitating
Community Life Competence within the neighbourhoods we work in.
The Constellation is both a movement of communities and an organisation
of facilitators bound by the belief that communities have strengths. The
3-day programme included a meeting with a neighbourhood group,
discussions triggered by this meeting and the sharing of past experiences.
Participants became familiar with the SALT Concept and Practice, the
Community Life Competence Cycle and were able to sketch out the next
steps in their own context.

8.6
Research

Tracking Study
The responsibility of tracking the persons served within Beyond is a
necessary part of the work for Beyond to remain progressive and
information driven. Thus the tracking study was initiated in 2013 to enable
us to reflect on our work, to acknowledge what we have achieved, and
ascertain its short term and long term impact of the people we serve. The
tracking study has been designed at three levels-individual, groups and
community.  Specifically, the tracking study aims to:
1. Understand our service population and remain sensitive to changes both
in its scope and in its needs.
2. Ascertain the impact of our work on individuals, families, communities in
the short-term and in the long-term.
3. Validate and improve on the theories that we use to formulate the work.
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Presentations
The Research team presented about Beyond’s approach to community
development and issues related to poverty in Singapore at various
platforms like schools, VWOs and other external partners as part of public  
education and awareness. The concepts of ‘hidden community’ and asset
based community development have been highlights of these presentations.
Following are the lists of schools/partners:

1) College of Alice & Peter Tan
2) Mendaki
3) Raffles Junior College
4) Singapore Law Society
Collaborative projects with other stakeholders
We worked with interns and students from Singapore’s leading academic
institutions on projects that were aligned with our research goals. In 2013
we continued our partnerships with NUS Arts and Social Sciences Faculty,
Lee Kuan Yew School of Public Policy and the Chua Thiam Poh Community
Leadership Programme. We had new partners like National Council of
Social services and Caritas to explore new opportunities as well. This was
part of our continuing efforts to share different perspectives, advocacy,
mutual learning and get others interested in the work.

Following are the lists of collaborative projects:

a. The management of volunteers in Beyond
b. Analysis of Donor Profile and Nature of Donations
c. Poverty and Welfare attitudes of Singaporeans
d. Working paper on defining Poverty in Singapore.
e. Evaluation of the Babes Program in Beyond.
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Project

Brief Description

Collaboration with

A Case Study: Recruitment and
Management of Volunteers in
Beyond Social Services This

paper examines issues of recruitment
and retention of volunteers in
Beyond Social Services.

MBA student from PSB Academy

Analysis of Donor Profile and
Nature of Donations: Financial
Year 2012 and 2013

This report examines the nature
of funding Beyond received in
Financial Year 2012 and 2013. It
also analyses the variation and
changes to donation streams within
this timeframe

Chua Thian Poh Community
Leadership Program

Poverty and Welfare Attitudes of
Singaporeans

This paper discusses findings from
a survey of 440 Singaporeans on
their attitudes towards poverty.
The survey covered five domains:
definition, severity, causes,
characteristics of poor people, and
government assistance.

Prof Irene Ng, NUS

Working paper on defining
poverty in Singapore

This paper looks into the different
ways in which poverty is defined
and examining what would be
suitable in the Singaporean context.

Caritas

Evaluation of the Babes Program
in Beyond.

A qualitative study of experiences of
past beneficiaries as well as well as
designing strategies to improve the
program.

NCSS

Newsletters
In the year 2013 the Research Department initiated quarterly newsletters for internal circulation. The
newsletters cover information related to research, policy, latest news etc. related to social & community
development from both national & international sector. It also covers interviews, articles & reflections
contributed by the staff & interns in Beyond. Since its inception in August there have been two quarterly
newsletters for the year 2013.
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8.6
The Staff

Assistant Director

Ms T Ranganayaki
Mr Vincent Lim

Community Relations Executive

Ms Cheryl Lek
Ms Jolene Fok
Ms Kalaivani Magantharan

Research Executive

Ms Anuja Hazarika
Mr Samuel Tang
Mr Seah Pei Kwang

Volunteer Manager
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Ms Chiu Ying Yik

9.

Finance & administratioN
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9.1
Overview
The Finance and Administration Department continued to play a key role
in ensuring that our systems and processes as a whole complied with the
Charity Council’s Code of Governance. They provided the essential support
for the smooth running of the community work teams and the organisation
as a whole. Support included Info Technology and Human Resource
Management (HRM). HRM played an important role in reinforcing the
staff’s sense of purpose, passion and competencies. It worked at cultivating
a staff force that had the capacity for self-reflection and evaluation, the
humility to learn from our service-users and the appreciation that some
amount of personal sacrifice is often needed in the course of work.
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9.2
Key tasks carried out
9.2.1
Finance

9.2.2
Administration

9.2.3
Information
Technology Support

• Completed audit reviews that stretched over 2 years.  The reviews were
led by Shared Services for Charities and the controls and processes
were further enhanced.
• Facilitated the smooth and successful separation of our teenage
pregnancy support and family service centre programmes and their
application to be charities and IPCs. The Babes Pregnancy Crisis
Support Ltd and South Central Community Family Services Centre Ltd
were incorporated as independent entities. They are now approved
charities and granted IPC status.

• Facilitated the  smooth transition of the School Pocket Money Fund
administration to South Central Community Family Services Centre Ltd.
• Led the preparation of pro bono personal accident insurance cover
by SHC Insurance Pte Ltd and Asia Capital Reinsurance Group Pte Ltd
to Beyond’s beneficiaries.
• Led the corporate volunteering activity with Compassion Fund’s coin
counting activity for ‘Share A Meal’ fund-raising activity.
• Collated beneficiaries’ wishes for participation in Boys’ Brigade Sharea-Gift project.

• Upgraded internet bandwidth and network infrastructure with optic fibre
connectivity.
• Maximised Office 365 collaboration and document management
functionality with the rollout of Microsoft SharePoint 2013 and
upgraded the intranet system.
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9.2.4
Human Resource
Management

•

•
•

Responded timely to the government’s recommended pay for the sector
and aligned our scale with organisations who do not receive
government funding. Our research revealed that the salaries within
non-funded organisations are at least 10% lower than those receiving
government funding.
Enhanced the performance appraisal system and introduced a merit
system for performance based remuneration
Implemented Orientation Beyond a monthly training programme
covering relevant organisational practices and knowledge for new staff
and those due for refresher training.

The Staff

Assistant Director

Mr Andrew Loh

Managers

Ms Cecilia Teo
Ms Simone Kaelen

Executives

Mr Chew Fook Hong
Ms Cecilia Chan
Mr Jack Ho
Ms Peggy Wong
Ms Sisilina Susanto till 31/10/2013

Janitors

Mr Aziman Ali
Ms Junaidah Ali
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10.

saying thanks
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People and Coordinating Bodies
Our volunteers, who give so much of themselves for the young people
we serve.
Dr Sheryn Mah and Mrs Joy Balakrishnan
Well Wishers
Dr S Vasoo
Honorary Advisor to the Organisation
Central Singapore Community Development Council

THANK
YOU

The National Council of Social Service for their confidence in the
organization, their long-standing friendship and support
The National Youth Council for their constant encouragement and
recognition of our work.

Government & Grassroots Organization
Health Promotion Board
Henderson Heights Residents Committee
Kim Seng Community Centre
Kreta Ayer Kim Seng
Leng Kee Community Centre
Whampoa Community Club and Residents’ Committee
Yio Chu Kang Residents Committee
Kampong Java Neighbourhood Police Centre
Bukit Timah Neighbourhood Police Centre

Community Self-Help Groups
Narcotics Anonymous
Saint Augustine Group
Waterfalls Student Care Centre
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Religious Groups
Al-Amin Mosque
Al- Muttaqin Mosque
Hajjah Rahimabi Mosque

Organizations for their friendship and support
Academy of Principals
For adopting us as their CSR partner and linking us with schools
ACR Capital Holdings Pte Ltd & SHC Insurance Pte Ltd
For making our families feel safe
Arbinger Institute
For sharing their knowledge on conflict resolution with our families
Asian Women’s Welfare Association (AWWA)
For your friendship and partnership
AXA Rosenberg Investment Management Asia Pacific Ltd
For believing in our ability to serve troubled children, youths and their
families. Our children always look forward to your innovative and fun-filled
events. We remain deeply grateful for your consistent support that has
strengthened our ability to serve over the years.
Baker & Mckenzie, Wong & Leow
For being wonderful supporters of our children and families & generously
touching their lives with your resources and friendship.
Barclays Capital Services Limited
For serving our children with all your heart and extending your friendship
with them through fun-filled activities and programmes.
Bettr Barista Coffee Academy
For offering world-class coffee skills to our beneficiaries. Your partnership
has strengthened our youths to become better contributors to the society.
BlackRock
For your time with our children from the LIFE programme. Your partnership
and support is a source of encouragement for us.
B Braun Singapore Pte Ltd
For being wonderful supporters of our work and supporting the Track a Life
Programme  
Boys Brigade Sharity Gift Box
For their act of giving that has benefitted many families we serve
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Carpe Diem Holdings Pte Ltd
For being a committed, creative & caring friend to our children from the
Healthy Start Child Development Centre and supporting them through the
Track a Life Programme  
China Aviation Oil (Singapore) Corporation Ltd
For believing in our ability to serve troubled children and enabling us to do
so through your donations.
Energy Market Authority
Thank you for your long-time friendship and support for the children and
youths we serve. Your thoughtful giving has brought much sunshine to those
we serve.
Far East Organisation
For your generosity & compassion and hosting our children, youth and
families at Bugis Village Hotel. The families deeply appreciated the
privilege and it was a rare quality bonding time for them.  The stays have
been a most helpful & meaningful resource for our work.
Food from the heart
For contributing towards the monthly birthday celebrations in Healthy Start
Child Development Centre. You never fail to put a smile on their faces with
your sweet treats.
Faculty of Dentistry- NUS
For beautifying the smiles of our children and being a wonderful friend to
our children at Healthy Start Child Development Centre
Franciscan Missionaries of Mary
For its active interest in our work, the friendship extended to children and
families we serve
GIC Recreation Club
For bringing in the Festive Cheer to our families and reassuring them that
they live among compassionate and caring people
Global Yellow Pages Limited
For relentlessly rendering their web-hosting expertise to our volunteer and
research websites. Your generosity has enabled us to better advocate our
work.
Lee Foundation
For the continual support and interest in our work and directing funds
towards our cause.
Lotus Light Charity Society (Singapore)
For reaching out to our families through your generous donation of rice.
We remain deeply grateful for your consistent support

86

Mainly I love Kids Fund (MILK)
For your continued generosity and kindness which have reassured the
children, youths and families we serve that they live in a supportive
community.
Malaysia Dairy Industries Pte Ltd
For gifting milk packs to the families. Your generosity has enabled us to
better advocate our work.
Merrill Lynch / Bank of America
For serving our children & families with all your heart. Your reading
programme & drama activities have reassured our children that they can
learn and your continued interest to work with our Henderson families by
organizing a fun filled family day for them
MobileOne Ltd
For your active interest in our work and enabling us to do so through your
generous donations.
National Library Board
For making the visits to the library a fun and exciting one
Postdam University of Applied Science
For their support & partnership
Pramerica Financial Asia
For your active involvement in our community event - Cycles for the
Community. Your act of refurbishing 30 old bicycles as gifts for children
and youths in the neighbourhood has reassured them that they live in a
compassionate society
Publicist
For sharing your creativity with us
PJ Clinic Bukit Ho Swee
For medical services at reduced rate for our beneficiaries & staff
Red Pencil
For being committed, creative & caring adult friends and reaching out to
our children through Art Therapy
Rotary Club of Queenstown
For organising a day trip to Kusu Island. It was a meaningful exchange of
sharing love and concern between the volunteers and our families
Singapore Civil Defence Force – 1st Division, Alexandra Fire Station
Thank you for being a friend to our little ones at the Healthy Start Child
Development Centre by supporting the Graduation.
You have brightened their childhood and reassured their families that they
live in a supportive community.
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Singapore Scouts Association
For your interest in our work. Your partnership has strengthened our ability
to serve.
Spring Singapore
For the fun-filled educational trips that provided valuable lessons for our
children beyond the classroom.
Singapore Polytechnic Optometry Centre
For impressing on our young children the importance of caring for their
eyesight
Tanglin Trust School
For raising a generous sum to fund our Family Learning Centre by cycling
from Kuala Lumpur and back to their school in 24 hours
Traders Hotel
For giving disadvantaged young people a pathway to a brighter future with
your valuable gift of education.
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
For creating a conducive study environment for our children through your
HSBC CR Challenge
The Little Arts Academy
For offering programmes to our children and youths in the areas of theatre,
music, visual arts and dance and continuing to generously touch their lives
with your resources and friendship.
United World College of SEA
For the committed service your students provided our children. They were
good friends to our children and wonderful role models.
Verizon
For believing in our ability to serve children from the Healthy Start Child
Development Centre and enabling us to do so through your generous
donations. Your partnership is an important source of encouragement for us.
Corrupt Practices Investigation Bureau, Defence Science & Technology
Agency, Standard Chartered, The Fullerton Hotel Singapore, Credit Suisse
AG, Friends In Charity, STMicroelectronics Asia Pacific Pte Ltd, Visa
Worldwide Pte. Limited, Fuji Xerox Singapore, Grand Hyatt Singapore,
Norton Rose Fulbright (Asia) LLP, American Women’s Association, Coutts
& Co Ltd, Singapore Polytechnic, Dr. Valentin Low Aesthetic & Laser Clinic,
For Sponsorship & Donations In-Kind & organizing fun filled events for our
children
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Porcelain Pte Ltd, Ministry of Defence, Australia and New Zealand
Banking Group Limited, Sathya Sai Centre for Educare, AIG Asia Pacific
Insurance Pte. Ltd,
For trusting us with your generous contribution of food rations and efforts
to reach out to our families through door knocking. Your kindness have
made a significant impact on sustaining our programmes and reinforced the
principle of respectful giving
Zouk Management Pte Ltd, Traders Hotel Singapore, Baker & McKenzie.
Wong & Leow, Nestle Singapore Pte Ltd, Mayor’s Image Fund, Singapore
Totalisator Board, National Youth Council – SHINE Funding
For supporting the 2013 Youth United Day. Through your support &
encouragement, we were able to make the event a grand success.
Individuals for extending friendship & cooperation
Ms Angeline Poon & Mr Bernard Tan
For consistent support that has strengthened our ability to serve
The Khoo Family, especially Jacqueline
For their continual support and genuine concern for the well-being of the
people we serve
Ms Melissa Kwee and the Big Sisters from the Beautiful People
Programme
For mentoring and organizing programme for our youths
Mr Aleksander Duric
For inspiring our children and youth to do their best
Mr Mervyn Goh
For being a committed, creative & caring friend to our children. You have a
knack of making our children feel special by finding ways to celebrate their
efforts, talents and strengths, giving them the gift of self-worth.
Ms Geraldine Kan
For helming the Sat LIFE programme at Whampoa and touching the lives of
many children
All our volunteers
For sharing your time and yourselves to serve the people we work with
The spouses, partners, children, family & friends of our staff
For respecting and supporting their odd working hours and particular
perspectives of life
Finally our most grateful thanks to all others who have contributed time,
energy, resources or funds but are not mentioned here. Your goodwill
has energized and assured those we serve that they are a part of the
community we live in.
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School Partnerships
Anderson Junior College, Anderson Primary School, Anglo-Chinese Junior
College, Ang Mo Kio Primary School,  Assumption Pathway School,
Balestier Hill Primary School, Balestier Hill Secondary School,  Bedok South
Secondary, Bendemeer Primary School, Blangah Rise Primary School, Bukit
Merah Secondary School, Cantonment Primary School, Cedar Primary
School, Chao Yang School, CHIJ St Theresa’s Convent, Damai Primary
School, Farrer Park Primary School, First Toa Payoh Primary School, Gan
Eng Seng Primary School, Henderson Secondary School, Hong Wen
Primary School, Hwa Chong Institution, ITE College Central, Mayflower
Primary School, MINDS - Lee Kong Chian Gardens School, National Junior
College,  Nanyang Girls High, National University of Singapore, National
Technological University, Northbrooks Secondary School , New Town
Primary School, Ngee Ann Polytechnic, NIE’s Group Endeavours in ServiceLearning Programme, Northlight School, NTUC First Campus, Outram
Secondary School, Outward Bound School, Queenstown Primary School,
Queenstown Secondary School, Queensway Secondary School, Radin Mas
Primary School, Raffles Girls’ School, Raffles Institution (Junior College),
River Valley Primary School, Rivervale Primary School, Si Ling Primary
School, Singapore American School, Singapore Chinese Girls School,
Singapore Institute of Management,  Singapore Polytechnic, Singapore
Management University, SJI International, St Andrew’s Junior School, St
Joseph’s Institution Junior, Tanglin Trust School, Teck Ghee Primary School,
United World College of SEA, Victoria Junior College, Yishun Junior
College, Zhangde Primary School, Zhenghua Primary School   
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statement
by board of
management

We, being two of the undersigned Board of Management of Beyond Social
Services do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Board of Management,
the balance sheet, statement of financial activities and statement of cash flows
are properly drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Society as at 31 December 2013 and the results, changes in funds and
cash flows of the Society for the financial year ended on that date.

On behalf of the Board of Management

Stanley Tan
President

Chua Kee Lock
Honorary Treasurer
Singapore
10 May 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT OF BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES (the “Society”),
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2013, the statement of financial activities, and
statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The Board of Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Society’s Board of Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act (Chapter 311), Charities
Act (Chapter 37) and Charities Accounting Standard, and for devising and maintaining a system of
internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and
that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair statement of financial
activities and balance sheet and to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Society’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Society’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Board of
Management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

94

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions
of the Societies Act (Chapter 311), Charities Act (Chapter 37), and Charities Accounting Standard,
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Beyond Social Services as at 31
December 2013 and the results, changes in funds and cash flows of the Society for the financial
year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion,
(a)

the accounting and other records required by the above regulations to be kept by the
Society have been properly kept in accordance with those regulations;

(b)

there were no fund raising events held during the financial year; and

(c)

the use of donation money received is in accordance with the Society’s objectives.

HELMI TALIB & CO
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore
10 May 2014
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013
2013		2012
$
$
				
ASSETS				
Non-Current Assets				
Plant and equipment
6
83,273		145,462
Total Non-Current Assets		
83,273		145,462
				
Current Assets				
Receivables
7
154,325		 167,676
Cash and cash equivalents
8
2,664,839		3,074,306
Total Current Assets		
2,819,164		3,241,982
				
				
TOTAL ASSETS		
2,902,437		3,387,444
				
LIABILITIES				
Current Liabilities				
Payables
9
534,568		540,960
Total Current Liabilities		
534,568		540,960
				
				
TOTAL LIABILITIES		
534,568		540,960
				
				
NET ASSETS (LIABILITIES)		
2,367,869		2,846,484
				
				
FUNDS OF CHARITY				
Unrestricted Funds				
General fund		
1,718,243		2,258,066
Designated funds		
455,737		 399,610
Total Unrestricted Funds		
2,173,980		2,657,676
				
Restricted Funds				
Bukit ho swee family service centre		
328,421		 274,853
Babes teen mom crisis service		
(134,532)		(86,045)
193,889		188,808
Total Restricted Funds		
				
				
TOTAL CHARITY FUNDS
5 / 10 2,367,869		2,846,484
NOTES

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
NOTE
2013
2012
		$
$
INCOME				
				
Income from generated funds				
Voluntary income		
3,259,057		2,332,617
Investment income		
410		
8,308
		
3,259,467		2,340,925
				
				
Income from charitable activities		
1,452,415		2,160,585
				
				
Other income		
8,386		
2,705
				
TOTAL INCOME		
4,720,268		4,504,215
				
EXPENDITURES				
Cost of generated funds				
Cost of generated voluntary income		
(224,083)		 (145,665)
				
				
Charitable activities		
(4,857,405)		(5,365,077)
				
				
Governance costs		
(14,981)		 (25,818)
				
				
Other expenditures		
(102,414)		 (154,046)
				
TOTAL EXPENDITURES		
(5,198,883)		(5,690,606)
				
Net Income (Expenditure)		
(478,615)		(1,186,391)
				
Gross transfer to (from) funds				
Transfer of support cost allocation		
-		
Utilisation of discretionary fund		
-		
				
Net movement in funds		
(478,615)		(1,186,391)
				
Reconciliation of Funds				
Total funds brought forward		
2,846,484		4,032,875
				
Total funds carried forward
5
2,367,869		2,846,484

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013



GHM>L


;Yk`Ûgok^jgeGh]jYlaf_9[lanala]k
G^mbg\hf^!^qi^g]bmnk^"_hkma^r^Zk

.

:]cnlmf^gml_hk3
=^ik^\bZmbhgh_ieZgmZg]^jnbif^gm
Ehll!@Zbg"hg]blihlZeh_ieZgmZg]^jnbif^gm
Bgm^k^lmbg\hf^
;Z]]^[mlpkbmm^g&h__







*)+%))-
*)+%)0)
,--
!-*)"
&

Gh]jYlaf_;Yk`>dgokZ]^gj];`Yf_]kafOgjcaf_;YhalYd



!,0/%/**"

!*%)-)%/.,"

MhmZe\aZg`^lbgphkdbg`\ZibmZe
=^\k^Zl^!Bg\k^Zl^"bgk^\^boZ[e^l
=^\k^Zl^bgiZrZ[e^l





/%2.2
*,%,.*
!/%,2+"

!-*-%21-"
!/)%+)+"
!,.-%01+"

Net Cash Flows Used in Operations
Bgm^k^lmk^\^bo^]
Net Cash Flows Used in Operating Activities





!,/2%/.+"
-*)
!,/2%+-+"

;Yk`>dgok^jgeAfn]klaf_9[lanala]k
:\jnblbmbhgh_ieZgmZg]^jnbif^gm
Ikh\^^]l_khf]blihlZeh_ieZgmZg]^jnbif^gm
F]l;Yk`>dgokMk]\afAfn]klaf_9[lanala]k





!-)%++."
&
!-)%++."

;Yk`>dgok^jge>afYf[af_9[lanala]k
Net Cash Flows From (Used in) Financing Activities



&

G^m]^\k^Zl^bg\ZlaZg]\Zla^jnboZe^gml
<ZlaZg]\Zla^jnboZe^gmlZm[^`bggbg`h_r^Zk
;Yk`Yf\[Yk`]imanYd]flkYl]f\g^q]Yj



1

Ma^Z\\hfiZgrbg`ghm^l_hkfZgbgm^`kZeiZkmh_ma^l^ÛgZg\bZelmZm^f^gml'

98

+)*,


+)*+


!-01%/*."

!-)2%-/0"
,%)0-%,)/
+%//-%1,2

!*%*1/%,2*"
 *-.%0,1
 *.,%,,0

!+2/"
 !1%,)1"

*%)).

! *%-..%/,0"

1%,)1
!*%--0%,+2"
 !,)%,/2"

+2/
 !,)%)0,"


&

! *%-00%-)+"
-%..*%0)1
,%)0-%,)/

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

1

THE SOCIETY AND ITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Bukit Ho Swee Community Service Project, the predecessor of the Beyond Social Services was originally
established in August 1969. The Bukit Ho Swee Social Service Centre was registered as a Society (herein referred
to as “the Society”) in 7 February 1987.
On 15 October 2001, the Society was known as Beyond Social Services. The registered address of the Society is
Block 26, Jalan Klinik, #01-42/52, Singapore 160026.
The Society is a registered charity under the Charities Act, Chapter 37 since 19 September 1988, and has been
accorded the status of an Institution of Public Character (“IPC”) for 3 years from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2016. The
registration number is S87SS0025J.
The principal activities of the Society are to provide counseling and care services for children and young persons,
to assist where possible families in need and to encourage voluntary social service and responsible citizenship.
The financial statements of the Society for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the Board of Management on the date of Statement of Board of Management.

2

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Society is governed by the Board of Management. All Board members are volunteers who contribute pro bono
their time, expertise and services. They do not receive any reimbursements.
For the financial year under review, the members of the Board of Management 2013/14 who were appointed on
29 May 2013 are as follows:
President
Vice President
Honorary Secretary
Honorary Treasurer
Founder Member Representative
Committee Members :

-

Mr Stanley Tan
Mr Goh Chee Kong
Mr San Shang Hou
Mr Chua Kee Lock
Sister Molly Lim
Ms Janet Lyn
Dr Tan Poh Kiang
Mr Andy Leck
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act (Chapter 311),
Charities Act (Chapter 37), and Charities Accounting Standard (“CAS”).
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting
policies below.
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. All these
judgments, estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The financial statements are expressed in Singapore Dollar (“SGD” or “$”).
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Society and are consistent with those used in the
previous financial year, except for accounting policies disclosed in the notes of changes in accounting policies.

3.2 Changes in accounting policies
In the current financial year, the Society has adopted the CAS earlier than applicable period of financial periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2015. The early adoption of CAS has no material effect on the amounts reported
for the current or prior years and does not result in changes to the Society’s accounting policies except for the
following:
(a) Plant and equipment
Under the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”), the carrying values of plant and equipment are
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable.
However, plant and equipment shall not be revalued and are not required to be assessed for impairment
under CAS.
(b) Fair value of financial instruments
Under FRS, upon initial recognition, all financial instruments (financial assets and liabilities) are measured at fair
value of consideration received less attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at fair value
or amortised cost, depending on the classification of the financial instruments.
Under CAS, initial recognition of all financial instruments (except for financial lease receivables and payables)
are measured at cost excluding transaction cost. Transaction and interest cost are recognised as expenditures
when incurred. Subsequent recognition of these financial instruments are measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.
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(c) Deferred capital grant
Under FRS, donations and government grants for capital expenditure are taken to the respective fund accounts.
On utilisation of these funds for capital expenditure, an equivalent amount is transferred to Deferred Capital
Grants. The Deferred Capital Grants is amortised to the statement of financial activities over the useful lives of
the related assets to offset the depreciation charge on these assets.
Under CAS, grants received specifically to provide funding for an asset will be recognised in full in the
statement of financial activities and not deferred over the life of the asset. Once the asset is acquired, the use
of the asset will either be restricted or unrestricted. If the use is unrestricted, a fund will be designated to reflect
the value of the asset. The fund will be reduced over the useful life of the asset in line with the depreciation.
Grants received for a restricted purpose is recognised as income in a restricted fund if Beyond has entitlement
to the income and is limited by the restriction as to the purpose of application of the income.
According to its transitional provisions, the revised accounting policies adopted has been applied retrospectively
with effect from the date of transition. Assets and liabilities are appropriately recognised in accordance with CAS
on 1 January 2012.

3.3 Functional currency
The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Society operates
i.e. functional currency, to be Singapore Dollar (“SGD”). Donations received, major costs and operating expenses
are primarily influenced by fluctuations in SGD.

3.4 Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
The cost of plant and equipment initially recognised includes its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the plant and equipment to working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure relating to
plant and equipment that has already been recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Society and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance expense is recognised in the statement of financial
activities when incurred.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis to allocate the cost of the assets less residual values over their
estimated useful lives. The annual rates of depreciation are:
Air-conditioner
Computer
Equipment
Furniture and fittings
Leasehold improvement
Motor vehicle

-

5
3
5
5
5
5

years
years
years
years
years
years

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of plant and equipment. An item of
plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in the statement of financial activities in the
year the plant and equipment is derecognised.
101

3.5 Financial assets
Financial assets are any asset that is either cash or equity instrument of another entity or Society has a contractual
right:
• To receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
• To exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the Society.
Financial assets are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when the society becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
Financial assets are measured initially at the transaction price excluding transaction costs. Transaction costs shall be
recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Activities as incurred. Subsequent to initial measurement,
financial assets are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
The Society classifies its financial assets into the following categories:
(a) Trade and other receivables
Included in trade and other receivables are prepayments. Prepayments shall be initially recognised at the
amount paid in advance for the economic resources expected to be received in the future.
After initial recognition, prepayments shall be measured at the amount paid less the economic resources
received or consumed during the financial period.
(b) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances.

3.6 Impairment of Financial assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Society shall assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment of
its financial assets. If there is objective evidence of impairment (including significant changes with an adverse effect
that have taken place in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates),
the society shall recognise an impairment loss (i.e. expenditure) immediately in the statement of financial activities.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired includes observable data that
come to the attention of the Society about the following loss events:
(i) Significant financial difficulty of the debt/bond issuer or obligor.
(ii A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments.
(iii) The creditor, for economic or legal reasons relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty, granting to the debtor a
concession that the creditor would not otherwise consider.
(iv) It has become probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
(v) Observable data indicating that there has been a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, even though the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the group, such as adverse national or local economic conditions
or adverse changes in industry conditions.
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For an equity investment, the impairment loss are recognised in the statement of financial activities whenever the
carrying amount of the investment is lesser than the best estimate (which will necessarily be an approximation)
of the amount (which might be zero) that the Society would receive for the investment if it was to be sold at the
reporting date.
For all other financial assets, the impairment loss are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities whenever
carrying amount of the financial asset is lesser than the undiscounted future cash flows (excluding unearned interest
in the case of an interest-bearing financial asset) that the Society expects to receive from the financial asset.
An impairment loss is only revised to the extent that the assets’ carrying amount of the financial asset (net of any
allowance account) that exceeds what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not previously
been recognised. The Society shall recognise the amount of the reversal in the Statement of Financial Activities
immediately.

3.7 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are any liability that is a contractual obligation by the Society to:
• Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
• Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable to the Society.
Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, other than accruals, shall be recognised at their transaction
price, excluding transaction costs, if any, both at initial recognition and at subsequent measurement. Transaction
costs shall be recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial activities as incurred. Accruals shall be
recognised at the best estimate of the amount payable.

3.8 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Society has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
where it is probable that it will result in an outflow of economic benefits to settle the obligation and the amount of
the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If
it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

3.9 Funds
(a) Unrestricted Fund
Unrestricted fund comprises general fund and designated fund. General funds are used for the general
purposes of the Society as set out in its governing document. If part of an unrestricted fund is earmarked for
a particular project, it may be designated as a separate fund, but the designation has an administrative
purpose only, and does not legally restrict the Board of Management’s discretion to apply the fund.
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The Society classifies the following funds as unrestricted funds:
• General fund
• Designated fund
(b) Restricted Fund
Restricted funds are funds subject to specific funded programmes by government and charity bodies, but still
within the wider objects of the Society.
Restricted funds may only be utilised in accordance with the purposes established by the sources of such funds
and are in contrast with unrestricted funds over which the board of management retains full control to use in
achieving its institutional purposes.
The Society classifies the following funds as restricted funds
• Bukit Ho Swee Family Service Centre
• Babes Teen Mom Crisis Service

3.10

Income recognition

Income shall be recognised in the statement of financial activities when the effect of a transaction or other event
results in an increase in the Society’s net assets. This normally arises when there is control over the rights or other
access to the resource, enabling the Society to determine its future application, virtually certain that income will be
received and the amount of the income can be measured with sufficient reliability.
All income is reported at gross. However, where funds are raised or collected for the Society by individuals not
employed or contracted by the Society, the gross income of the Society are the proceeds remitted to the Society by
the organisers of the event, after deducting their expenses. The following specific recognition criteria must also be
met before income is recognised:
(a) Income from generated funds
- voluntary income in the form of donations and activities for generating funds are recognised when received  
with unconditional entitlement to the receipts.
-

investment income comprised interests earned from bank current accounts and fixed deposits placed with
banks, recognised on an accrual basis.

(b) Income from charitable activities
Comprised government subventions and grants for the programmes run by the Society. These are recognised as
income according to the terms of the funding agreements, on an accrual basis with unconditional entitlement to
the receipts.
(c) Other Income
Comprised membership subscriptions, government credits, refunds, reimbursement, services rendered and the
like are recognised as and when received.
(d) Sponsorship-in-kind
Sponsorship-in-kind is recognised as income when the Society obtains control of the sponsorship and the
amount can be measured reliably.
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3.11

Employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan
As required by law, the Society contributes to the employees’ Central Provident Fund (“CPF”) accounts monthly.
CPF contributions are recognised as compensation expenses in the same year as the employment that gives rise
to the contribution.
(b) Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.  Unused annual leave
are neither carried forward to the following calendar year nor encashed.

3.12

Expenditures

All expenditures are accounted for on an accrual basis, aggregated under the respective areas as soon as there is
a legal or constructive obligation committing the Society to make payment. Direct costs are attributed to the activity
where possible. Where costs cannot be wholly attributable to an activity, they have been apportioned on a basis
consistent with the use of resources.
(a) Allocation of support costs
Support costs comprise staff costs relating to general management, human resource and administration,
finance, IT, partnership and community building functions and have been allocated to charitable activities and
governance based on the headcount required of the activity.
(b) Costs of generating funds
These costs are directly attributable to the fund-raising activities, separate from those costs incurred in
undertaking charitable activities. These costs are met by contributions in the form of cash sponsorships
and grants.
(c) Charitable activities
Costs of charitable activities comprise all costs incurred in the pursuit of the charitable objects of the Society.
The total costs of charitable expenditure include an apportionment of overhead and shared costs.
(d) Governance costs
Included costs of preparation and examination of statutory accounts, costs of governing board meetings and
cost of any legal advice on governance or constitutional matters.

3.13

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the lease term, are
classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are charged to the statement of financial activities on a straight line basis over the year
of the lease.
When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to
the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the year in which termination takes place.
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3.14

Related party

Related parties include all of the following:
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Society if that person:
(i) Has control or joint control over the Society;
(ii) Has significant influence over the Society; or
(iii) Is a governing board member, trustee or member of the key management personnel of the Society or of a
parent of the Society.
(b) An entity is related to the Society if any of the following conditions applies:
(i) The entity and the Society are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);
(ii) The entity is an associate or joint venture of the Society (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the Society is a member) and vice versa;
(iii) The entity and the Society are joint ventures of the same third party;
(iv) The entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the Society is an associate of the third entity and vice versa;
(v) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and
(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a governing board member, trustee
or member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
(c) Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Society and include:
(i) That person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(ii) Children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
(iii) Dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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4

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The following are significant transactions between the Society and related parties that took place during the
financial year. The effects of these transactions are reflected in the financial statements on the basis determined
between the parties.
(a) Significant related party transactions
		
President-related companies
Expense paid on behalf
Administrative fee  income
Cash received on behalf

2013		
$
45,722
14,194
(15,969)

2012
$
-

Outstanding balance as at 31 December 2013, arising from the administrative fee income and transactions on
behalf of South Central Community Family Service Centre Ltd and Babes Pregnancy Crisis Support Ltd
are unsecured and receivables/payables within 12 months from balance sheet date are disclosed in
Notes 7 and 9 respectively.
Information regarding president-related companies is disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statement
(b) Remuneration of key management personnel
		
Short-term employee benefits

2013		2012
$
$
655,136
685,630

Key management personnel consist of the Executive Director, Deputy Executive Director and Assistant Directors.
Of the 10 key personnel, 4 were on sabbatical leave for periods ranging from four weeks to eight months
(2012: 3 were on sabbatical leave for six months). Only one paid staff received annual remuneration exceeding
$100,000 (2012: 1 staff).
Short-term employee benefits comprise basic annual salary, annual wage supplement, annual variable component
and contributions to Central Provident Funds. Fringe benefits are excluded.
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DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
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5

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
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177,285

234,813

2,258,066

1,718,243

57,528

(539,823)

Net Movement in Funds

-

-

890
247,166

57,528

Beautiful
People
Fund
$

246,276

(786,989)

$

General Fund

752

3,501

(2,749)

-

-

(2,749)

$

Beyond
Champions
Fund
$

292

292

-

-

-

-

Cirque Du
Monde
Fund

100,483

92,561

7,922

-

-

7,922

$

Educational
Assistance
Fund

Designated Funds

Unrestricted Funds

2013

-

-

-

-

88,843

88,843

$

Employee
Welfare
Fund

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought
forward
Total funds carried
forward

Gross transfer to (from)
funds
Transfer of support
cost allocation
Utilisation of
discretionary fund

NET INCOME /
(EXPENDITURES)

5

30,554

21,748

8,806

-

-

8,806

$

Family
Assistance
Fund

-

8,800

(8,800)

-

-

(8,800)

$

FSC
Comcare
Fund
$

-

890

(890)

(890)
(890)

-

-

FSC
Discretionary
Fund

-

5,690

(5,690)

-

-

(5,690)

$

School
Pocket
Money
Fund

455,737

399,610

56,127

(890)
(890)

-

57,017

$

Total
Designated
Fund

2013

2,173,980

(483,696)

246,246

246,276

(729,972)

$

Total
Unrestricted
Fund

328,421

274,853

53,568

(197,021)

(197,021)

250,589

$

Bukit Ho
Swee Family
Service
Centre

768

(134,532)

(86,045)

(48,487)

(49,255)

(49,255)

$

Babes
Teen Mom
Crisis
Service

Restricted Funds

193,889

5,081

(246,276)

(246,276)

$

Total
Restricted
Fund

2,367,869

2,846,484

(478,615)

-

-

(478,615)

$

Total Funds

2012

2,846,484

4,032,875

(1,186,391)

-

-

(1,186,391)

$

Total Funds

6

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Air-conditioner
$
Cost
At 1 January 2012

Leasehold
improvement
$

Motor
vehicle
$

Total
$

76,050

173,465

38,503

93,598

621,160

57,000

1,059,776

-

28,773
(3,193)

1,596
(3,265)

-

-

-

30,369
(6,458)

76,050
2,100

199,045
38,125

36,834
-

93,598
-

621,160
-

57,000
-

1,083,687
40,225

(52,878)

(5,426)

(16,813)

(20,156)

(396,206)

-

(491,479)

At 31 December 2013

25,272

231,744

20,021

73,442

224,954

57,000

632,433

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2012

65,089

69,151

27,346

92,703

480,057

57,000

791,346

Charge for the financial year
Disposals

4,749
-

53,622
(3,193)

5,287
(3,265)

180
-

89,499
-

-

153,337
(6,458)

At 31 December 2012
Charge for the financial year
Disposals

69,838
3,153
(52,559)

119,580
45,239
(5,425)

29,368
3,620
(16,807)

92,883
179
(20,140)

569,556
49,879
(396,204)

57,000
-

938,225
102,070
(491,135)

At 31 December 2013

20,432

159,394

16,181

72,922

223,231

57,000

549,160

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2012

6,212

79,465

7,466

715

51,604

-

145,462

At 31 December 2013

4,840

72,350

3,840

520

1,723

-

83,273

Additions
Disposals
At 31 December 2012
Additions
Disposals
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Furniture
Computer Equipment & fittings
$
$
$

7

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Sundry receivables
Government funding receivables
Prepayments
Deposits

8

2013		2012
$
$
70,312
28,930
56,062
64,886
18,643
26,200
9,308
47,660
154,325
167,676

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at banks
Cash on hand
Fixed deposits

2013		2012
$
$
2,662,439
1,661,940
2,400
3,400
1,408,966
2,664,839
3,074,306

Cash at banks are held in interest bearing current accounts and earns interest at 0.05% (2012: 0.05%) per annum
up to $200,000 deposits.
Cash at banks earns interest on fixed deposits is earned at rates of 0.05% (2012: ranging from 0.05% to 0.90%)
per annum. Interest rates are repriced within one year at floating rate based on daily bank deposit rates.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the balances
as shown above.

9

PAYABLES

Accrued employee benefits expense
Accrued operating expenses
Government funding – Received in advance

10

2013		2012
$
$
435,461
243,313
96,341
84,514
2,766
213,133
534,568
540,960

FUNDS ACCOUNTS BALANCES

(a) Beautiful People Fund
Beautiful People is a volunteer project where professional and skilled persons share their skills and spend time
with teen girls, through the various programmes and activities, associated with various community organisations
including family service centres, welfare homes and youth outreach organisations in Singapore.
Beautiful People partners with Beyond Social Services for programmes and activities which are mutually
beneficial. Funds raised by the Beautiful People are used to defray the costs of its programmes and activities. The
administrative services provided by Society are pro bono
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(b) Beyond Champions Fund
This Fund was set up by sports enthusiasts who believe sports play a positive influence in developing the youths and
children’s sports potential by creating opportunities for them in the world of sports. It is expanded to include the
arts and other activity-based experiential learning programmes.
(c)

Cirque Du Monde Fund

Cirque Du Monde Fund was set up for Cirque Du Monde project and related activity-based learning programmes
for the youth.
(d) Educational Assistance Fund
Established to give monetary support to encourage children and youths to stay in school or pick up a skill
after alternative sources of support such as SPMF, bursaries/scholarships have been explored. Individuals and
corporates contribute monetary gifts and donations.
(e) Employee Welfare Fund
Established by a donor to provide immediate short-term financial assistance specifically to Beyond’s employee who
is a breadwinner and caregiver, and his/her family to tide over the crisis which has arisen from a sudden serious
illness or death of the employee. The aid can also be extended if financial hardship occurs because a child or
spouse of an employee suffers from a serious illness and requires costly medical care.
(f)

Family Assistance Fund

Donations received from the public designated for the purpose of helping the needy families.
(g) FSC Comcare Fund (“FCF”)
Established by the Ministry of Social and Family Development to support the Family Service Centre (FSC)’s role
in helping needy Singaporeans. FCF provides immediate assistance to clients of FSC who require urgent and
temporary financial relief to tide over their current situations. The fund was transferred to South Central Community
Family Service Centre Limited as of 1 November 2013.
(h) FSC Discretionary Fund
This Fund is set up by Central Singapore Community Development Council to empower FSC with the flexibility
to render immediate financial assistance to the needy. It provides interim help for needy clients with no financial
support and who is under special circumstances pending for financial assistance from national schemes and who
face financial difficulties e.g. elderly or people with disabilities who are not able to afford medical services. The
fund was discontinued from 1 April 2013.
(i)

School Pocket Money Fund (“SPMF”)

The SPMF is a charity fund-raising project organised by The Straits Times to heighten public awareness of the
plight of children from low-income families who were attending school without proper breakfast or pocket money
to sustain their day in school. The fund raised is distributed to all FSC through NCSS to benefit the eligible clients
of FSCs.
As of 1 January 2014, Beyond Social Services ceased the role as SPMF Disbursing Agency.
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(j)

Bukit Ho Swee Family Service Centre (“FSC”)

FSC supports the well-being of families with dependent children; especially those from a socially disadvantaged
background. We do this by facilitating their access to social services, financial and other resources; enhancing their
ability to achieve economic success and strengthening their integration into their neighbourhoods or communities.
We also work proactively with other stakeholders in the community to bring about a network of support that
protects such families from disintegrating and towards these families becoming active & contributing members of
their communities.
The FSC service model includes Casework & Counselling where community workers help families reach a mutually
satisfactory resolutions to the problems presented. If the specific needs of the families cannot be met by the FSC,
they will be provided the necessary information & referrals to appropriate agencies through the Information &
Referral service.
The programme is incorporated on 11 January 2013 as an independent organisation. It was known as Bukit Ho
Swee Family Service Centre Ltd. The name was changed and it is now known as South Central Community Family
Service Centre Ltd.
(k) Babes Teen Mom Crisis Service (“Babes”)
Babes is a teenage pregnancy crisis SMS helpline that exists to guide teenagers who are experiencing an
unplanned pregnancy crisis by proactively providing information, support and community resources that nurture
responsible decision making and behaviours with the involvement of their family group and their community.
The programme is incorporated on 31 May 2013 as an independent organisation. It is known as Babes Pregnancy
Crisis Support Ltd.
Unless specifically indicated, fund balances are not represented by any specific accounts, but are represented by
all assets and liabilities of the Society.

11

INCOME TAX

The Society is a registered Charity under the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and its income is exempted from
income tax.

12

TAX EXEMPT RECEIPTS

The Society issued tax deduction receipts for donations received from voluntary income during the financial year
amounting to $2,802,375 (2012: $1,806,824).

114

13 SPONSORSHIP-IN-KIND
The following items of sponsorships-in-kind received from the corporate donors are
included in the statement of financial activities of the Society for financial year ended
31 December 2013.

No.

Item Description

1

Youth United Day Celebration
– Venue Sponsorship

Zouk Management Pte Ltd

81,775

2

Marigold UHT Milk & HL Milk
Packet Drinks

Malaysia Dairy Industries
Pte Ltd

28,750

3

Concert Tickets to Adam
Lambert Performance

Hype Records

21,640

4

Festive gifts for Hari Raya
and Deepavali

Staff of Government of
Singapore Investment
Corporation

18,960

5

Personal Accident Insurance
Cover (1 year) for lower
income families

Asia Capital Reinsurance
Group Pte Ltd & SHC
Insurance Pte Ltd

18,919

6

Food Packs

AIG Asia Pacific Insurance
Pte Ltd

15,000

7

Foldable mattresses and
BATA vouchers

Mr Sim Chong & friends

9,100

8

Festive Food Packs

Porcelain Pte Ltd

9,100

9

Formula One Entrance
Tickets, Food Packs and
Hampers for Lunar New Year

ANZ Singapore

6,770

10

Concert Tickets to Jack &
The Bean Sprout!
Performance

WILD RICE Ltd

3,750

11

Concert Tickets to The Script
Performance

Singapore Sports Council

3,304

12

Concert Tickets to Light
Seeker Musical Performance

Resorts World at Sentosa
Pte Ltd

2,400

13

HTC Phones Model Radar
C110e

High Tech Computer
Singapore Pte Ltd

2,135

14

Youth United Day Celebration
- Sponsorship of Hot Dog &
Mineral water

Traders Hotel Singapore

1,500

15

Foldable mattresses

Staff of Singapore
Polytechnic

TOTAL
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Name of Donor

Amount
Estimated
By Donors
($)

980
224,083

The following items of sponsorships-in-kind received from the corporate donors are
included in the statement of financial activities of the Society for financial year ended
31 December 2012.

No.

Item Description

1

Youth United Day Celebration
– Venue Sponsorship

Zouk Management Pte Ltd

71,075

2

Personal Accident Insurance
Cover (1 year) for lower
income families

Asia Capital Reinsurance
Group Pte Ltd & SHC
Insurance Pte Ltd

24,850

3

Hari Raya & Deepavali
Festive Packs

Staff of Government of
Singapore Investment
Corporation

4

Food Ration Donation

Chartis Singapore
Insurance Pte Ltd

5

Youth United Day Celebration
– Sponsored of Hot Dog
Buns & Water Bottles

Traders Hotel, Singapore

5,800

6

Rice Donation

Lotus Light Charity Society

3,450

7

The Wishing Tree Project
(Christmas giving to
Whampoa Community)

Ogilvy & Mather (S) Pte Ltd

3,150

8

Donation of vouchers for
Community Graduation
Prizes and mattresses

Staff of Singapore
Polytechnic

3,140

9

Theatre Performance –
‘Swan Lake’

Singapore Dance Theatre
Limited

1,500

10

Milk Pack Donation

Malaysia Dairy Industries
Pte Ltd

1,200

TOTAL
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Name of Donor

Amount
Estimated
By Donors
($)

21,000
10,500

145,665

14

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Society has entered into operating leases on the photocopier machines. Rental expenses for premises and photocopier machines for the Society recognised in the statement of financial activities for the financial year ended 31
December amounting to $169,164 and $14,548 (2012: $190,584 and $17,719) respectively.
(a)

Future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases for premises located at No.
10 Admiralty Road East as of 31 December are as follows:
2013
2012
$
$
Within one financial year
-		126,104
Within two to five financial years
-				
-		126,104
The lease was not renewed when expired on 18 November 2013 and the premises were returned to the Singapore
Land Authority. The rental of remaining premises may be terminated by either lessee or lessor without assigning
any reason therefore on giving to the other notice in writing. The Society has no intention to terminate the abovementioned leases for the next subsequent year.
The lease agreements do not contain any contingent rent payment.
(b)

Future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases for photocopier machines as
of 31 December are as follows:
2013		2012
$
$
Within one financial year
11,270
16,560
Within two to five financial years
45,530
12,420
56,800
28,980

15

MANAGEMENT OF RESERVES

The Society regards its unrestricted general fund as its reserves.
The reserve policy envisions an operating reserve of 2-3 years to ensure that services can continue to function
during lean years. Fund raising income usually reduces during periods when the economy is not doing well but it
is also during these periods that beneficiaries need help the most. The Society will not keep a reserve fund that is
more than 3 years of its operating budget.
Net cash resources of the Society are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 8)
Receivables (excluding prepayments) (Note 7)
Payables (Note 9)

2013		2012
$
$
2,664,839
3,074,306
135,682
141,476
(534,568)
(540,960)
2,265,953
2,674,822

The Society’s overall approach to management of reserves remains unchanged from the previous financial year.
The Society is not subject to any externally imposed reserve requirements.
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RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR

(a)

Adoption of CAS

The CAS was adopted by the Society on 1 January 2013. The adoption of CAS requires the Society to disclose in
a complete set of financial statements, comparative information in respect of the previous comparable period for all
monetary amounts presented in the financial statements, as well as specified comparative narrative and descriptive
information. Therefore, the Society’s date of transition to the CAS is the beginning of the earliest period for which
the Society presents full comparative information in accordance with the CAS in its first financial statements that
conforms with the CAS, i.e. 1 January 2012.
(b)

Additional government disclosure

On 18 March 2014, the government had required all Voluntary Welfare Organisation (“VWO”) to provide additional disclosure of government and community funds to promote transparent and regular financial reporting. In
addition to the submission of a separate income and expenditure statements for each funded programme, the VWO
are now required to disclose a separate balance sheet by means of restricted funds. This is to ensure funds meant
for this funded programme are utilised exclusively for this programme only.
The financial statements of the Society for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 are restated to reflect the
changes made in the prior year with respect to the adoption of CAS and additional reporting disclosure. The effect
of the restatement on those financial statements is summarised below. There is no effect in 2013.
Effect on 2012
$
Impact on balance sheet:			
Decrease in non-current liabilities
(10,184)
Decrease in total liabilities
(10,184)
			
Decrease in general funds
(161,508)
Increase in restricted funds
188,808
Increase in funds
27,300
			
17,116
				
Impact on statement of financial activities:			
Decrease in income
(17,116)
Decrease in net income
(17,116)
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(b)

164,226

-

164,226

$

3,928,383

(24,595)

3,903,788

6,237

-

6,237

Beyond
Champions
Fund
$

292

-

292

Cirque Du
Monde
Fund
$

52,074

Balance as at 1 January 2013 - as
per CAS
Recognition of deferred grant
income
Recognition of grant income
Reversal of amortisation of
deferred grant income
Balance as at 1 January 2013 - as
per FRS

Beautiful
People
Fund
$

177,285

-

-

177,285

$

2,258,066

(24,595)
(2,705)

17,116

2,247,882

General Fund

3,501

-

-

3,501

Beyond
Champions
Fund
$

292

-

-

292

92,561

-

-

92,561

Educational
Assistance
Fund
$

Unrestricted Funds
Designated Funds
Cirque Du
Monde
Fund
$

-

52,074

Educational
Assistance
Fund
$

As at the end of the latest financial period i.e. 31 December 2013

Balance as at 1 January 2012 - as
per CAS
Recognition of deferred grant
income
Balance as at 1 January 2012 - as
per FRS

Beautiful
People
Fund
$

Unrestricted Funds
Designated Funds

88,843

-

-

88,843

Employee
Welfare
Fund
$

92,027

-

92,027

Employee
Welfare
Fund
$

At the date of transition to the CAS

(a)

General Fund

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS DETERMINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
SINGAPORE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND CHARITIES
ACCOUNTING STANDARD UPON ADOPTION OF CAS
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-

-

-

21,748

-

-

21,748

8,800

-

-

8,800

Family
FSC
Assistance Comcare
Fund
Fund
$
$

13,295

-

13,295

Family
FSC
AssistanceComcare
Fund
Fund
$
$

890

-

-

890

FSC
Discretionary
Fund
$

-

-

-

FSC
Discretionary
Fund
$

5,690

-

-

5,690

School
Pocket
Money
Fund
$

24,217

-

24,217

School
Pocket
Money
Fund
$

399,610

-

-

399,610

Total
Designated
Fund
$

352,368

-

352,368

Total
Designated
Fund
$

2,647,492

17,116

(24,595)
(2,705)

2,657,676

Total
Unrestricted
Fund
$

4,256,156

(24,595)

4,280,751

Total
Unrestricted
Fund
$

274,853

-

-

274,853

Bukit!
Ho Swee
Family
Service
Centre
$

(196,107)

-

(196,107)

Bukit
Ho Swee
Family
Service
Centre
$

(86,045)

-

-

(86,045)

Restricted Funds
Babes
Teen
Mom
Crisis
Service
$

(51,769)

-

(51,769)

Restricted Funds
Babes
Teen
Mom
Crisis
Service
$

188,808

-

-

188,808

Total
Restricted
Fund
$

(247,876)

-

(247,876)

Total
Restricted
Fund
$

2,836,300

17,116

(24,595)
(2,705)

2,846,484

$

Total Funds

4,008,280

(24,595)

4,032,875

$

Total Funds

12.

CODE of Governance
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Governance Evaluation Checklist Submission
This submission is for evaluation period: Jan 2013 to Dec 2013

S/No. Code Description

Code
ID

BOARD GOVERNANCE
1
Are there Board members holding
staff appointments?

2

3

Remarks: (Skip questions 2 and 3 if
“No”)
If the governing instrument permits
staff to become Board members,
they should comprise not more than
one-third of the Board.
Staff does not chair the Board.

Explanation (If the Code
Compliance guideline is not complied
to or not applicable)
No

1.1.2

1.1.2

4

There is a maximum term limit of
four consecutive years for the
Treasurer position (or equivalent,
e.g. Finance Committee
Chairman).

1.1.6

Complied

5

There are Board committees (or
designated Board members) with
documented terms of reference.

1.2.1

Compiled
Complied

6

The Board meets regularly with a
quorum of at least one-third or at
least three members, whichever is
greater (or as required by the
governing instrument).

1.3.1

Compiled

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
7
There are documented procedures for
Board members and staff to declare
actual or potential conflicts of interest
to the Board.
8

Board members do not vote or
participate in decision-making on
matters where they have a conflict of
interest.

2.1

2.4

Compiled

Honorary Treasurer holds
the same office for four (4)
consecutive years only.

9 Board committees namely
Audit;
- Appointment and
Nomination;
- Finance and Administration;
- Fund-raising;
- Human Resource;
- Programmes and Services;
- Healthy Start Child
Development Centre
Management Committee;
- Beautiful People; and
- Volunteers

Board meets quarterly.

Conflict of interest policy is
in place. Board members,
committee chairpersons
and key staff members sign
the declaration annually.

Compiled
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S/No. Code Description
STRATEGIC PLANNING
9
The Board reviews and approves the
vision and mission of the charity. They
are documented and communicated to
its members and the public.
10 The Board approves and reviews a
strategic plan for the charity to ensure
that the activities are in line with its
objectives.
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
The Board approves documented
11
human resource policies for staff.
There are systems for regular
12 supervision, appraisal and
professional development of staff.
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND CONTROLS
13 The Board ensures internal control
systems for financial matters are in
place with documented procedures.

14
15
16
17
18

The Board ensures reviews on the
charity’s controls, processes, key
programmes and events.
The Board approves an annual
budget for the charity’s plans and
regularly monitors its expenditure.
The charity discloses its reserves
policy in the annual report.

Explanation (If the Code
Compliance guideline is not complied
to or not applicable)

3.1.1

Compiled

3.2.2

Compiled

5.1

Compiled

5.6

Compiled

6.1.2

Compiled

6.1.3

Compiled

6.2.1

Compiled

6.4.1

Compiled
No

Does the charity invest its reserves?
Remarks: (Skip question 18 if “No”)
The charity invests its reserves in
accordance with an investment
policy approved by the Board. It
obtains advice from qualified
professional advisors, if deemed
necessary by the Board.

FUNDRAISING PRACTICES
19 Donations collected are properly
recorded and promptly deposited by
the charity.
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Code
ID

6.4.3

7.2.2

Compiled

An internal auditor
(Shared Services for
Charities) was appointed
to independently review
of our processes and
controls for Years 2012
and 2013.

Beyond aims to build an
operating reserves of 2
to 3 years.

S/No. Code Description
DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY
20 The charity makes available to its
stakeholders an annual report that
includes information on its
programmes, activities, audited
financial statements, Board
members and executive
management.
21

22
23

24

25

26

Code
ID
8.1

Are Board members remunerated for
their Board services?
Remarks: (Skip questions 22 and 23 if
"No")
No Board member is involved in setting
his or her own remuneration.
The charity discloses the exact
remuneration and benefits received
by each Board member in the annual
report.

The charity discloses in its annual
report the annual remuneration of its
three highest paid staff who each
receives remuneration exceeding
$100,000, in bands of $100,000. If
none of its top three highest paid staff
receives more than $100,000 in
annual remuneration each, the
charity discloses this fact.

PUBLIC IMAGE
27 The charity accurately portrays its
image to its members, donors and
the public.

Compiled

No

Volunteers contribute
their time and services
pro bono.

2.2
8.2

Does the charity employ paid staff?
Remarks: (Skip questions 25 and 26 if
“No”)
No staff is involved in setting his or
her own remuneration.

Explanation (If the Code
Compliance guideline is not complied
to or not applicable)

Yes

2.2

Compiled

8.3

Compiled

9.1

Compiled

Human Resource
Committee (HRC) guides
all matters relating to
human resource. HRC
reports to Board directly.
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If you have any enquires, email us at mail@beyond.org.sg or call 6375 2940. Happy to hear from you.

